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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after

due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there

will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever ansing from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Jia Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”). The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would

make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Jia Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company"), | am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its

subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$219.1 million or 4.9% less than last year (2018: HK$230.3 million). Loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$32.0 million (2018: loss of HK$15.4
million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in revenue from
restaurants serving European cuisines partially offset by the increase in revenue from
restaurants serving Asian cuisines. The weak revenue performance was brought by the
global and local economic and social uncertainties, such as the US-China trade war and
the social unrest and related demonstrations in Hong Kong during the period. In addition,
there was a loss of revenue from Aberdeen Street Social as the restaurant was closed
down from | April 2019 to || June 2019 for the renovation of Louise. The significant
increase in loss was mainly attributable to the declining revenue from European restaurants

and start-up operating costs for new restaurant opened during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group operated |2 full-service
restaurants, a bar, and a food court outlet in Hong Kong. We believe our multi-brand
strategy enables us to maintain our focus to our customers with varying tastes and

preferences, allowing the Group to benefit from the diversification of our customer bases.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has closed down Aberdeen
Street Social and introduced “Louise”, a partnership with Michelin-starred French Chef
Julien Royer of Odette Restaurant to take over the prime location in PMQ. In September
2019, the Group opened an outlet in the food court of the Hong Kong International
Airport offering top quality authentic Cantonese cuisine under the “Duddell's” brand. In
December 2019, the Group opened an outlet named “Mono” which feature modern
French cuisine with South American influences. The Directors believe that the addition of
the new restaurants strengthening the Group's position as a well-established restaurant

group in Hong Kong.

CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

ITREHBES

EAIRR

FARBREEREBERAR([AAR)E
(g2 ([E38)) MAZBRARARANE
DA (A EE])EZE2019%F 12A31H1E
FEMNFREESE -

BMgRR
BHZE09F12A31BLEEFE - AEERA
MR BEBT  BREFRD49% (2018
F:2303B&BT) c AARIERAEESF
EEERD0BEHET(2018F : FEIS4E
BAT) c MATREZHRBUNEBKAT
B o MERKAFIBATEE - 23K
Kot 77 4B Rt g At (P8 HBUA
REERZPENL SR BT EET)
BYRWARBRS © 1o - BB Lovise
Aberdeen Street Social B20194%4 A 1| HZ2019
FoH I BRAMMERZERBKARIE - BB
HRBEMEZERERFABMEEBKAT
P& LA R ET R R B BRI SRR ©

EHEERAR

REZE019F12A3IBLEFE - XEBES
BRET_HE2RBAEE  —RBELE
RESEH - HPEE - BANZ mIERR
EHEMEHZINEE TR KL EENE
P e AEBRERE TP ER -

REZE2019F12A31 BIEFE - AEE B
Aberdeen Street Social I 5|3 Odette Restaurant
EBIKE MR E R EFRMulien Royerf &%
[Louise |  LABERPMQIVE S HER 702019
FIR  AEBEBEBRERSNERESA
FR—EEE U BEMEE mhE - =BH
BEEREH - R2019F 128  AEEHMR
—ME R Mono JHI I - &R B REEIK
MIRAEBX - EERR - ERHTEEERE
TAREEABE - RNBEREEAMAL -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F1k



CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
TEHES

Apart from operating our own restaurants, we also provide restaurant management and
consultancy services in Taiwan, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and the United
Kingdom (“UK™).

In year 2019, the business environment of the catering industry in Hong Kong was
severely affected by the uncertain development of the US-China trade relationship as
well as the social incidents since June 2019. What makes the situation even worse is the
outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") since January 2020, which severely
affected the operating environment of food and beverage businesses. To avoid the
spread of COVID-19, the number of both local customers and visiting tourists declined,
seriously affecting the people traffic, and the consumers’ spending sentiment. The Group's
management expects that the operating environment of the Group in year 2020 will be
even tougher and more challenging. To cope with this, the Group's management has kept
monitoring the market conditions and adjusted the operation strategies timely. Also the
Group would actively negotiate with the business partners to sort out feasible measures

during such unabated difficult period.

The Board will continue to monitor the development of the coronavirus outbreak and the
relevant government measures, and assess the impact on the economy and the Group's
business. The Group has adopted the following measures to help maintain the Group's

competitiveness to weather the challenges:

(i) reviewing the performance of existing restaurants and adjusting the strategies to be
adopted in relation individual restaurants. For instance, the Group may suspend the
operations of some of its restaurants and to explore new concepts; the Group will

also consider closing underperformed restaurants to cut loss;

(i) imposing more stringent cost control measures such as reducing operating hours,

offering no-pay leave to its employees, and reducing headcounts;

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF
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(i) actively negotiating with landlords to explore the possibility of obtaining rental

concessions; and

(iv)  developing and promoting “|IA Everywhere”, our own home delivery services, to
cater for the need of customers who prefer to dine at home amid the threat of the

coronavirus.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincerest gratitude to our shareholders,
business partners, and to our valued customers for their continuous support, while also
expressing my appreciation to the management team and staff for their hard work and

contributions to the development of the Group.

WONG Pui Yain
Chairperson
Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRHE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REEE
Year ended 3| December
BENAIBLEE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiB7 Fi7
Revenue WA 219,065 230,256
Loss before taxation BRI AIEE (31,697) (15,673)
Loss for the year FAEE (31,957) (16,426)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANAFIEA AL FEEE (31,957) (15,435)
Total comprehensive expense for the year attributable to A BIHEE ABIGFE
owners of the Company PHEFXEEE (31,957) (15,435)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LERERE
As at 31 December
RI12A31H
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TAET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREEE 87,192 38,740
Current assets MEEE 32,948 56,032
Total assets BEERE 120,140 94,772
Equity and liabilities BnkaE
Non-current liabilities FRBERE 18,270 7,779
Current liabilities nERE 72,695 25,861
Total liabilities BELE 90,965 33,640
Total equity Bnen 29,175 61,132
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEEH 120,140 94772
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE (AR EEFE (39,747) 30,171
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBAE 47,445 68911

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a well-established restaurant group in Hong Kong with award-winning
restaurants serving a variety of cuisines including Chinese, Spanish, Thai, British, Italian and

Southern Californian dishes under different brands and themes.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has closed down Aberdeen
Street Social and introduced “Louise”, a partnership with Michelin-starred French Chef
Julien Royer of Odette Restaurant to take over the prime location in PMQ. In September
2019, the Group opened an outlet in the food court of the Hong Kong Interational
Airport offering top quality authentic Cantonese cuisine under the “Duddell's” brand. In
December 2019, the Group opened a restaurant named “Mono” which features modern
French cuisine with South American influences. The Directors believe that the addition of
the new restaurants strengthening the Group's position as a well-established restaurant

group in Hong Kong.

The Group's restaurants served two categories of cuisines during the year ended 31
December 2019. 208 Duecento Otto, 22 Ships, Commissary, Ham & Sherry, Louise and
Mono are classified as European restaurants. Duddell's, Chachawan, Meen & Rice, Mak

Mak, Old Bailey and Behind Bars are classified as Asian restaurants.
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EBORE

ARBERBE - RNBREREE  HETEE
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EBIKEME RET RN ulien Royerf & B %
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BROERR - EERAR ia R EEER
AEEERBE - RALEREBNML -

BZE2019F12A31BLEE AEEMNE
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RMonon EREMNEE - HZF G
SOMMEER - Mak Mak * Old Bailey
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFwR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue by type of cuisines for
the year ended 31 December 2019 with the comparative figures for the corresponding
period in 2018:

B 5

L'ON

TRHIAEEDRIREZE2019F 1273
BIEFERIAEL D BEORARNBRER
2018 F RN RS T -

For the year ended 3| December

BZNA3NBLEE

2019 2018
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
PieE TER TAT
Catering services ZERRFS
— European restaurants —EOMEEE | &3 84,798 101,030
— Asian restaurants —DNEE 28&4 132,940 127,984
217,738 229,014
Sponsorship income BRI A 800 800
Membership fee income 2EHA 527 442
219,065 230,256
Note |: 208 Duecento Otto, 22 Ships, Ham & Sherry, Aberdeen Street Social, Commissary, Louise F3E1: 208 Duecento Otto * 22 Ships * Ham
and Mono are classified as European restaurants. & Sherry * Aberdeen Street Social »
Commissary * Louise &z Mono 2 28 B EUM &
BE o
Note 2: Duddell's, Chachawan, Meen & Rice, Mak Mak, Old Bailey and Behind Bars are classified as FMizE2: #EEFISEE - Chachawan » SHIABEER * Mak
Asian restaurants, Mak * Old Bailey % Behind Bars /48 A ZmME
EE o
Note 3: The Group closed Aberdeen Street Social in April 2019 and opened Louise at the premises P3E3: ANEER2019%4 AR Aberdeen Street
occupied by Aberdeen Street Social in mid-June 2019. Mono opened in December 2019. Social * ffiLouise 2019 6 A A&
Aberdeen Street Social FTIEEEFTHI% © Mono
0195 12 AR -
Note 4: The Group opened an outlet in the food court of the Hong Kong International Airport fist4: RNEBUATHENSE | REREBEEE

under “Duddell's” brand.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's total revenue amounted
to approximately HK$219.1 million (2018: approximately HK$230.3 million). The
Group recognised a decrease of total revenue by approximately HK$11.2 million or
approximately 4.9% from 2018 to 2019, which was mainly due to global and economic
and social uncertainties, such as the US-China trade war and the social unrest and related
demonstrations in Hong Kong during the period. In addition, there was a loss of revenue
from Aberdeen Street Social as the restaurant was closed down from | April 2019 to ||
June 2019 for the renovation of Louise, offset by the revenue generated from the new

restaurants (Duddell's Airport and Mono).

Income tax expense

The Group is subject to income tax on an enterprise basis on profits arising in or derived
from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are domiciled and operate. The
Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Company was subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, respectively.

The effective income tax rate of the Group was approximately 0.82% and 7.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, respectively, if the effect of the one-off Listing

expenses was excluded.

Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's loss was approximately HK$32.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of approximately HK$15.6
million as compared with a loss of approximately HK$16.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The loss-making for the year ended 31 December 2019 was mainly
attributable to (i) the decrease in revenue mainly from our European restaurants; (ii) the
increase in depreciation, amortization of right-of-use assets and finance upon the adoption

of HKFRS 16 offset by the decrease in property rentals and related expenses.

EEENWE DN
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Street Social B2019F4 A 1 HZE2019F6 A 11
RERMMEBZERKAXE BRHERE
Duddell's Airport & MonoZE 4 B L A T 85 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFwR DT

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its operations primarily through cash generated from operating

activities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The Group recorded net current liabilities of approximately HK$39.7 million as at 3|
December 2019 (2018: net current assets HK$30.2 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's current ratio was approximately 0.5 (2018: 2.2)
and the Group's gearing ratio calculated based on the total debt (excluding trade nature
balances, tax balances and provision) at the end of the year divided by total equity at the
end of the year was approximately 237.6% (2018: 26.9%). The significant increase is mainly
due to the adoption of HKFRS 16 for the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2019, the maximum limit of the banking facilities available to the
Group amounted to HK$22 million and has been fully utilised. The bank borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, repayable by instalments or on demand and interest-
bearing at floating rates of 4.59% to 5.19% per annum (31 December 2018: 2.50% to
3.79% per annum).

As at 31 December 2019, the capital structure of the Group consisted of equity
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$29.2 million, comprising of

issued share capital and reserves.
Breach of Loan Agreements

Certain bank loan facilities of the Group are subject to certain covenants on financial
gearing and capital requirements as commonly required under lending arrangements with
financial institutions. The Directors became aware that the Group has technically breached
the loan covenant as the Group has failed to fulfill certain financial criteria in which the
calculation is based on the Group's financial information, details are set out in note 25 to

the audited consolidated financial statements.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board is of the opinion that, after taking into account the existing bank balances and
cash, internally generated funds and available banking facilities, the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operations. However, if the liquidity position deteriorates as a result
of prolonged Novel Coronavirus impact or other unforeseen circumstances, Ms. Wong
Pui Yain, being the controlling shareholder and director of the Company, will provide
continuing financial support to the Group and take measures to enable the Group to have
sufficient working capital to meet its liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due
and to continue to carry on its business for the next coming twelve months from the date

of this report.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group during the twelve months

ended 3| December 2019,

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE RISKS

The Group operated mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group's transactions settled
in Hong Kong dollars. As such, the Group did not have significant exposure to foreign

exchange risk during the year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to floating-rate
bank borrowing, and fair value interest rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposits and
non-interest bearing amounts due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and amount due from an associate. The
Company is mainly exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to non-interest

bearing amounts due to subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group closely monitors its exposure to future cash flow risk as a
result of change on market interest rate and will consider hedging on changes in market

interest rates should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of

HIBOR arising from the Group's bank borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFwR DT

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2019, the maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Board considers

the credit risk of the Company is immaterial.

The Group trades with a large number of individual customers and trading terms are
predominately on cash and credit card settlement. In view of the Group's operations, the

Group does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single individual customer.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
companies, a controlling shareholder, non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an
associate. The Board considers the counterparty with good credit worthiness based on its

past repayment history.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged bank deposits of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed banks. The Group
has concentration risk on its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and bank balances

are placed with two banks in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash

and cash equivalent deemed adequate by the management of the Group to finance the

Group's operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Group did not have any significant

investments, material acquisitions nor disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had contracted but not provided for capital
commitment of HK$4.0 million representing property, plant and equipment in respect of

the renovation of Louise, Duddell's Airport and Mono (31 December 2018: nil).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities (31
December 2018: nil)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2019, the Group's pledged bank deposits in the amount of HK$4.5

million was pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

USE OF PROCEEDS AND COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH

FrEREAEREYEERRERERE

ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

As the actual amount of the listing expenses was higher than the estimated amount of the
listing expenses set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 January 2018 (the
“Prospectus”), the actual net proceeds from the Share Offer of approximately HK$ 1.7
million (after deduction of the underwriting commission and listing related expenses), was
less than the estimated net proceeds of approximately HK$13.6 million as set out in the

Prospectus and the allotment results announcement dated 7 February 2018,

BB

HRETHXERSESRARAIBHA
20185 | A9 AMBIRER ((BRERFE
FIRAZHEFEE  WROEEMERE
ERFE(MEheEAek EmEARxE)
HARINTEEAET PREREERAER
2018F2 A7 AN B ERAEEMAETAIG

FOEFEA36AEBT

Approximate

Actual use of

Net Proceeds

Unused total

Net Proceeds

Planned use percentage up to up to
of total of total 31 December 31 December
Use of Net Proceeds Net Proceeds Net Proceeds 2019 2019
EENI9F EZ2019F
BRI RR 12A31BH# 12A31BH
BITERA REEN Fri&sIR DS )EE ]
FrIERIRRRAR RETERAR Bk RREBRAR  AERRER
(HK$ million) % (HK$ million) (HKS$ million)
(BBET) (BBET) (B&BT)
To develop new dining concepts and ~ Fff &l 2 ¥TE S BER
restaurants Mot ) KRB =D 7.7 65.8% 77 -
To carry out maintenance to the RASERBER
Group's existing restaurants (Nete2 HEITIRE D) 26 222% 26 -
To repay term loan M3 &R EHE R ) 1.0 8.6% 1.0 -
General working capital —REEER 04 34% 04 -
Total Bst 1.7 100% 1.7 —
Notes: BisE

I The Group utilised the net proceeds to finance the establishment of two restaurants in the
third quarter of 2019, namely, Louise and Duddell's Airport.

2. The Group commenced the renovation and maintenance work of existing restaurants in the
first quarter of 2019.

3. The repayments of term loans were executed according to the maturity dates as set in the
loan agreements with banks.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. WONG Pui Yain, aged 41, is the founder and a Controlling Shareholder. She is the

Group's chairperson, chief executive officer, executive Director, the chairperson of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the legal
compliance committee. She is currently responsible for overall strategic planning and
management of the Group's business development and operations and is also a director

of each of the members of the Group.

She is experienced in hotel management and has been engaged in the hospitality industry
since 2000. She is one of the founders of Irving Management Limited (now known as JIA
Hong Kong Operations Limited) which operates the JIA Boutique Hotels in Hong Kong
since 2004 and in Shanghai, the PRC since 2007. She also founded a garden restaurant in
a black and white colonial-style house named Graze and an indoor-outdoor restaurant
named Kha, both in Singapore, in 2006 and 2008, respectively. Ms. WONG Pui Yain
was awarded “Innovative Entrepreneur of the Year 2006" by Hong Kong's City Junior
Chamber in 2006. She was also named on the list of “Asia’s Best Young Entrepreneurs
2008" by Businessweek in 2008, the “Women of Our Time" by South China Morning
Post in 2013, the “Restaurateur of the Year" by WOM guide in 2014 and by Hong Kong
Tatler in 2016. She was appointed as a non-executive director of Gameone Holdings
Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8282) on 30 September 2015.

Ms. Wong graduated from University of Western Australia in March 2000 with a

bachelor's degree in economics.

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry, aged 46, is the Group's executive Director, senior operations
director and the chairperson of the legal compliance committee. She is responsible for
formulation of corporate development strategies, execution of daily management and

administration of business and operations, and regulatory compliance.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEERSHREEEER

She obtained a higher diploma in hotel and catering management from the Hong Kong
Technical College in July 1996. She has approximately |18 years of experience in the food
and beverage industry. From November 1996 to April 2011, she worked at Gaia Group.
She served Va Bene Ristorante for the periods of November 1996 to February 200
respectively. She worked as an assistant manager of Gaia Ristorante for the period of
March 2001 to March 2008. Her last position was operations manager of Gaia Group.
During her office in Gaia Group, she was primarily responsible for purchasing, staff hiring,
manager and staff training, menu planning and daily operation of eight restaurants in Hong
Kong and two restaurants in Shanghai, the PRC. She was also awarded “Most Influential

Woman in Hospitality 2018 — Hong Kong™ by APAC Insider in 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM, aged 43, is the Group's independent non-

executive Director, the chairperson of the remuneration committee and a member of
the audit committee and the nomination committee. He is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee, the remuneration

committee and the nomination committee.

Mr. Chanmugam joined Deutsche Bank AG in Hong Kong in July 2000 and worked for
Deutsche Bank AG in Singapore as vice president from May 2002 to September 2005. Mr.
Chanmugam served as a vice president (fixed income, currency & commodities division)
based in Tokyo in Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. from October 2005 to September 2007.
From October 2007 to May 2013, he was relocated to Hong Kong and his last position
was managing director (fixed income, currency & commodities division). In August 2014,
Mr. Chanmugam established Elezeno Capital Limited and acted as its director. In July 2000,
Mr. Chanmugam obtained his bachelor’s degree in mathematics and economics from the
London School of Economics and Political Science in the United Kingdom. He has been
licensed to engage in type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO since
March 2015.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric, aged 56, is the Group's independent non-executive Director,
the chairperson of the audit committee and a member of the nomination committee
and the legal compliance committee. He is responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee, the legal compliance committee

and the nomination committee.

He has more than 20 years of senior management experience in the financial markets. He
is the vice-chairman of Venture Smart Asia Limited. He had been the managing director
of Crosby Securities Limited, the chief financial officer of Shikumen Capital Management
(HK) Limited and SAIL Advisors Limited respectively, a director of Deutsche Bank, the
head of finance of NatWest Securities Asia Limited and the regional financial controller of
Lehman Brothers Asia Holdings Limited. From October 2010 to September 2013, he was
an executive director of Crosby Capital Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8088, now
known as AID Partners Capital Holdings Limited).

He graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with a first class honors
bachelor degree in business administration. He has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since October 1989 and a CFA charterholder

since November 2008.

Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony, aged 49, is the Group's independent non-executive Director
and a member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee. He is responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee

and the remuneration committee.

He has more than 10 years of experience in the finance industry. He has been with
UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited since December 2003 and is currently an associate
director of UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited. He has been licensed to engage in type
| (dealing in securities) regulated activities under the SFO since December 2003. He was
awarded a bachelor of arts degree in economics from Pepperdine University in the United
States in April 1995.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEERSHREEEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. TSANG Yin Mei, aged 58, is the Group's administrative manager and member
of the legal compliance committee. She is responsible for the office management and
administration of the Group. She has over 30 years of experience in secretarial work,
including secretarial support in trade/logistics firms. She had worked for Citizen Watches
(HK) Ltd., Update Electronics, Reliance Agency Ltd., Capital Asia Trading Co Ltd and
Orbotech Pacific Ltd. as a clerk, secretary and executive assistant, respectively, between
June 1982 and September 2001. Further, she had also worked for PC Asia Limited as an

administrative manager.

She obtained a diploma in business secretarial studies from the Hong Kong Young
Women's Christian Association Professional & Business Youth Department in May 1982,
and passed the Office Practice and Secretarial Practice courses offered by the Hong Kong
Baptist College Division of Continuing Education with distinction in April 1986 and with
credit in August 1986, respectively.

Mr. CHAN Ka Ching, aged 45, is the Group's senior project manager. He is responsible
for managing the Group's projects of interior design and the renovation of the Group's

restaurants.

He has over 10 years of experience in interior fitting-out works and project management.
He has worked for Hing Lee Construction Co. Ltd. and Arnlee Engineering Ltd. as
an assistant building services engineer for the period of June 1996 to April 1997 and
April 1997 to April 1998, respectively. He had also worked in Mutiara Design Limited
and JIA Boutique Hotels as a project manager from December 2001 to March 2004
and from December 2001 to April 2005, respectively. During his employment at JIA
Boutique Hotels, he handled project team management, site administration, maintenance
management, interior fitting-out works and cost control. Further, he had joined AFSO
as a project manager from June 2005 to October 2008. He graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor's degree of engineering in building services
management in November 2003 and a master's degree of science in project management

in December 2006.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, aged 55, was appointed as the Group's company secretary on
| May 2018. Ms. Leung is a director of K E Corporate Services Limited (a company
secretarial services provider), a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a fellow member of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Leung obtained a master's degree in commerce from

the University of New South Wales, Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBE

INTRODUCTION

The Board is committed to establish and ensure high standards of corporate governance
and adopt sound corporate governance practices. The Company's corporate governance
practices are based on the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix |5 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Directors strongly believe that reasonable and sound corporate governance practices are
essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and enhancing shareholders'

interests.

The Directors consider that during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this report, except for the deviation from code provision A2.| of the CG Code,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code. Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairperson and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Ms. Wong Pui Yain is the chairperson and the chief executive officer of the Company.
As Ms. Wong Pui Yain manages the Group's business development and operations on a
day-to-day basis and the Group's business is rapidly expanding, the Board believes that
with Ms. Wong Pui Yain's extensive experience and knowledge in the business of the
Group, vesting the roles of both chairperson and chief executive officer in Ms. Wong Pui
Yain is beneficial to the business prospects, management and operations of the Group as
it will (i) strengthen her leadership in the Group, and (i) allow for efficient and effective
planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from provision A2.| of the CG Code is appropriate in such

circumstances.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include the formulation of the Group's overall
strategies, the setting of management targets and the supervision of management
performance. The management is delegated with the authority and the responsibility by
the Board for the management and administration of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees of the Company.

Further details of the Board committees are set out below in this report.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the
Company by the direction and supervision of the Company's business and affairs and the
ultimate responsibility for day-to-day management of the Company which is delegated
to the management. To this end, periodic financial and operational information are
provided to the Board for assessing the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries.
For significant matters that are specifically delegated by the Board, the management
must report back to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. The management is
responsible for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group and to provide
the Board with updates in a timely manner, giving an assessment of the Company's

performance and position to enable the Board to discharge its duties.
The Board is responsible for, amongst others, performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include:
(@)  to develop and review the Group's policies and practices on corporate governance

and make recommendations;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the

Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal

and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to the Directors and employees; and

(e) to review the Group's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBE

BOARD COMPOSITION

Up to the date of this report, the Board comprises of five Directors, two of whom are
executive Directors and the other three are independent non-executive Directors. Details

of their composition by category are as follows:
Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (appointed as director on 21 August 2015 and re-designated as
executive Director and appointed as chairperson of the Board and chief executive officer

on 23 January 2018)

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (appointed as director on 21 August 2015 and re-designated

as executive Director on 23 January 2018)
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (appointed on 23 January 2018)

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (appointed on 23 January 2018)
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony (appointed on 23 January 2018)

All Directors have appropriate professional qualification or substantive experience and
industry knowledge. The Board as a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of
skills and experience. The composition of the Board satisfies the requirements of Rules
5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. There are three independent non-executive
Directors and at least one of them has the requisite accounting professional qualification.
With more than one-third of the members of the Board are independent non-executive

Directors, the Board has a strong independence element in terms of its composition.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings a diverse
range of expertise, skills and independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's
strategies, performance, conflicts of interests and management process to ensure that the

interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Board of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 17 to 21 of this report. There are no family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.
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CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain was appointed as a Director on 21 August 2015 and was re-
designated as an executive Director, the chief executive officer and the chairperson of the
Board on 23 January 2018. Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry was appointed as a Director on 21

August 2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 23 January 2018,

The chairperson of the Board provides leadership to the Board and is also responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice and is responsible for the overall corporate management of the business
development strategies of the Group. The executive Directors are responsible for the
implementation of the business strategies, policies and objectives set out by the Board and
is accountable to the Board for the overall operations of the Group. These functions and

responsibilities are currently being shared by the management team.

According to paragraph A.2.l of the Code, the roles of the chairperson and the chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During
the year, Ms. WONG Pui Yain, the chairperson of the Board, is responsible for overseeing
the overall financial matters of the Group. The day-to-day operations of the Group are
delegated to another executive Director, Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry, and the management

of the Group is responsible for different aspects of the business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong

Tony were appointed as the independent non-executive Directors on 23 January 2018.

With their professional knowledge and experience, the independent non-executive
Directors serve an important function of advising the management of the Group on
strategy development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards in financial
and other mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole and will
participate in the Company's various committees including the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the legal compliance

committee (the “Legal Compliance Committee”).
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The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive Directors a
written confirmation of his independence in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing

Rules, and therefore, considers each of them to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The articles of association (the “Articles”) provide that at each annual general meeting
("AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual

general meeting at least once every three years.

All of the Directors including both the executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors are appointed for a specific term. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
period of three years subject to the rotation requirement and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated by either party giving at least one month's notice in writing. In
accordance with the Company's articles of association and, at each AGM of the Company,

the Directors will retire from office by rotation but will be eligible for re-election.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of directors’ responsibilities

and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory regime and the
business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Directors are also
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The company secretary of the Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of

good corporate governance practices.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary of training received BRESERMNER  EFRNEZE2019F 12
by the Directors during the year ended 3| December 2019 is as follows: A3 BIEFERBINFIHENT

Continuous
professional

development

Name of Directors programmes
BEEHS BEEXRRTE

Executive Directors

BITES

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (Chairperson) Yes
affEzt (XRF) B
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry Yes
pET s A

Independent non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM Yes
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAMSE 4 B
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric Yes
REBSTLE B
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony Yes
WEE Keng Hiong Tony5£ 4 )

The nature of continuous professional development programmes are attending training BESEERTEHNTE R MEIRRE
courses or reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest development of BEABGEM L MR R EMEREEEX

the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, Wit ER MR ER o

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF BOARD MEETINGS ETEERNERARER

Schedules and draft agenda of each Board meeting are normally made available to BrEFeezNRERRBEREER KR
Directors in advance. At least |4 days’ notice should be given for a regular Board meeting. ARt TEE - THEZS SRR VRA
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notices are generally given. [4RELHBAN pEMEZSREESER

s —ReFLAZAA -
Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and EEEg RO MERTENLTE

decisions reached are duly kept by the company secretary at the meetings and open for ~ BURRM DI HAARNEESH L
inspection by the Directors. HEFETRAMAHESSER -
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The Articles contain provision requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or

any of their associates have a material interest.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to
all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to
keep the Directors apprised of the latest development and the financial position of the

Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

Details of Directors’ attendance at the AGM, Board and Board Committee meetings in

the year 2019 are set out in the following table:

ARUEAERKRESN R AERBESHEAHE
BEAFEEARSNRFIEALERRE

BARFAEE ABE G -
EZeNMHERMAEE  <BRUEEH

ANBREZCCEIERZBCCENE
PIRTATE2REFUEEFNEALEIN
RATER R BRI SR E AT E LB

RTE o

EEHETE
TREJNESP09FEEFEREBFRE
EZeNEELECCEMNFE

Number of meetings attended/held

HEBTEERE

Legal

General Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Compliance

Meetings Board Committee

T PN~ EXg ENZEE

Committee Committee Committee
EEER
yMZzEE REZES ZE®

Executive Directors

YTES

Ms. WONG Pui Yain 11 5/5
aEZL

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry I/ 5/5
BEELL

Independent Non-executive Directors

UHHTES
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM 11 4/5
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAMSE &
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric /1 415
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony [/1 4/5
WEE Keng Hiong Tony %t 4
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INDEPENDENT BOARD COMMITTEE

Where there are matters involving connected or continuing connected transactions, so far
as required under the GEM Listing Rules, an Independent Board Committee, comprising

wholly the independent non-executive Directors, will be established.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Legal Compliance
Committee with delegated powers for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's
affair. Each of the committees of the Company has been established with written terms of

reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, meetings shall be held not
less than four times a year and the external auditor may request a meeting if they consider

that one is necessary.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Leung
Yuk Lun Ulric, Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony and is
chaired by Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop
and review the policies of the Group and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the auditor's remuneration, the
independence of the auditor, BDO Limited (“‘BDO""), and recommended the Board to re-
appoint BDO as the Company's auditor for the year ending 31 December 2020, which is
subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.
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The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which opined that applicable accounting standards and

requirements have been complied with and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the
Remuneration Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the

GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, meeting shall be
held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors: Ms. WONG Pui Yain, Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr.
Wee Keng Hiong Tony and is chaired by Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include but without limitation: (a)
making recommendations to the Directors regarding the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all the Directors and the senior management of the Group and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;
(b) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management of the Group; (c) reviewing and approving the management's
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
and (d) considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible participants
pursuant to the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the sole shareholder of the

Company on 23 January 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme).

The Remuneration Committee determines Directors’ remuneration by reference to
the benchmarking of the market. The Company also considers individual Director's
competence, duties, responsibilities, performance and the results of the Group in

determining the exact level of remuneration for each Director.
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Senior Management’s remuneration

Senior Management's remuneration payment of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2019 falls within the following bands:

AN A
TREBRSE

BREERENHM

HZEWI9F1NA3IBIEEE  AEBSHE
BEMNFHSMELTEER

HK$ Number of individuals
BT AH
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T 2

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals are set

out in note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Directors and the senior management
was based on their experience, level of responsibility and general market conditions.
Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments are linked to the performance of the

Group and the individual performance of the Directors and the senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with paragraph A.5.1 of the CG Code. The terms of reference setting out the Nomination
Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, meeting shall be held
at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors Ms. WONG Pui Yain, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr. Devin
Nijanthan Chanmugam and is chaired by Ms. WONG Pui Yain.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is (a) to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board on regular basis; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; (c) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to

the appointment or reappointment of Directors.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the Board diversity policy as well as discussing matters regarding the retirement

and re-election of Directors.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a legal compliance committee on 23 January 2018. The
terms of reference setting out the Legal Compliance Committee's authority, duties and

responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Legal Compliance Committee, meeting shall be
held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The Legal Compliance Committee consists of Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry, Ms. WONG
Pui Yain and Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and is chaired by Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry. Please
refer to the section headed “Business — Internal control and risk management measures — .
Establishment of the legal compliance committee” in the Prospectus for further details of

the principal responsibilities of the Legal Compliance Committee.

The primary function of the Legal Compliance Committee is for the purpose of assisting in
overseeing compliance with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and

the adequacy and effectiveness of regulatory compliance procedures and system.

The Legal Compliance Committee has reviewed and is satisfied with the compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and the adequacy and

effectiveness of the regulatory compliance procedures and system.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the audited consolidated financial

statements

All Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for ensuring that the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for each financial year are prepared to
provide a true and fair view of the state of affairs, the financial results and cash flows of
the Group in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and the
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 2019, the Board has adopted appropriate and consistent
accounting policies and made prudent, fair and reasonable judgments and estimates. The
Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which reflect with
reasonable accuracy the state of affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity movement
of the Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable

accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability

to continue as a going concem.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The
statement of auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the audited consolidated

financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's auditor, are set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report with full text included in pages on 65 to on 72 of this report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration for the audit and non-audit

services provided by the Company's auditor to the Group was as follows:

BREET S
REZ2019F 12831 BIEFE » AARIZE
M AEBIRHET MR RSVB & m
—F :

Type of services Amount
R %51 &8
HK$'000
TET

Annual audit service for the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019F 12 A31 A iiﬁﬁ'\]ifgﬁg‘fﬂﬁx
—BDO Limited —EAUERREHMEBAERA 713
Non-audit services FEESTIRIS D 327
Total fEt 1,040

Note: Non-audit services include tax compliance services by BDO Limited and review services
and reporting accountants services by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the year ended 31

December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate goverance committee has been established and the Board is responsible
for performing the corporate governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company's policies, practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management, the Company's

policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc..
The Directors review the Group's corporate governance policies and compliance with the

CG Code each financial year and comply with the “Comply or Explain” principle in the

corporate governance report which is or will be included in the reports of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with the requirement as

set out in the CG Code, which is summarised as below:

The Board diversity policy of the Company specifies that in designing the composition
the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All Board members' appointment will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates for the Board will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, culture, ethnicity

and educational background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The Company discloses the composition of the Board in the corporate governance
report every year and the Nomination Committee oversees the implementation of the
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be

required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirms that all of the Directors complied with such required standard of dealings and
its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year ended 31

December 2019 and up to the date of this report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
and in particular, through AGMs or other general meetings to communicate with the

Shareholders and encourage their participation.

The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions for separate issues proposed
at the general meetings. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each

Shareholders’ meeting.
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The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor communication
policy and to update investors on relevant information on the Group's business in a timely

manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
(@)  Significant Changes in the Constitutional Documents

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there has been no significant change in
the constitutional documents of the Company. The Articles are available on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
(b)  General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company's AGM will be held on 26 May 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(@)  Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company. Shareholders also have the right to propose a person for election as
a Director, the procedures are available on the websites of the Company and the

Stock Exchange.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board to the extent such
information is publicly available to the company secretary who is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the Board's purview to the
executive Directors of the Company, communications relating to matters within
a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the chairperson of the appropriate
committee, and communication relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, enquiries and consumer complaints, to the appropriate management of
the Company, in writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.

Putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating to the operations
and the management of the Group to be discussed at shareholders' meetings.
The proposals shall be sent to the company secretary by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary
general meeting by following the procedures set out in “Convening an

extraordinary general meeting” above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key to enhancing

investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate

information to its shareholders and investment public. The Company updates its

shareholders on its latest business developments and financial performance through annual,

interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company (www.jiagroup.co)

has provided an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

AN A
TREBRSE

(b) MEZRFHES

BREENEAVARNEETEEHAR
ANAFER (RRREREREHE
ZERENEANETENBRABIAR
AMTEE HEMEFZEERESR
EANFENBREXEERRENE
B ARKBERREXBEENER
(Flmizs - SHRBERRFERAR
AEENEEAR)  BREWARER
ERREREBRELIENER °

() RERABRERR

ARABARRIBZAMAKERB L
BENEZENRRAE LW - Bl
FABREAMBRRFRITRANE - #
REEZSNBRREER X BRKR
BRIRE I mMEFaRRRERR

&= o
=

REEBEF

AREEE  #FSERERRAKRELER
ROER  UBHIRFAERRIREAR
RRAKREREEARDEMOEE - XA
BRFE  PHLRFEREAREEN AR
MEBERRREIBERR - KRR A BB
(www.jiagroup.co) B BARA LT KR FE M —
EBEMHERTS o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F1k

37



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBE

DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the approval of the shareholders and requirement of the relevant law, the
Company shall pay annual dividends to the shareholders if the Group is profitable,
operations environment is stable and there is no significant investment or commitment
made by the Group. The Company's ability to pay dividends will depend upon, among
other things, the Group's actual and expected financial performance, retained earnings
and distributable reserves, liquidity position, future cash requirements and availability,
restriction on payments of dividends that may be imposed by the Group's lenders, the

general market conditions and any other factor that the Board may consider appropriate.

Any declaration and payment of future dividends under the Dividend Policy are subject to
the Board's determination that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, the company secretary, is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. All Directors have access to the
advice and services of the company secretary to ensure that the Board procedures and
all applicable laws are followed. Moreover, the company secretary is responsible for

facilitating communications among Directors as well as with management.

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Leung Yin Fai, as its company
secretary. Mr. Tong Chun Kit Tony, the finance manager of the Group, is the primary

contact person whom Ms. Leung Yin Fai can contact.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the company secretary has undertaken more

than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM

Listing Rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The Group's systems
of risk management and internal control include a defined management structure with
limits of authority, which is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for intemal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and

achievement of the Group's objectives.

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibility
and delegated authority has been established. The division/department head of each core
operating division/department is accountable for the conduct and performance of such
division/department within the agreed strategies, which are set by themselves and the

Board together, and reports directly to the Board.
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In the course of conducting the business, the Group is exposed to various types of risks.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the following principal risks of the Group

EHRERERKBREY  A5EEESERR -
HE019F 12831 BILEFE - WEE%:%EIJ

were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and

compliance risks.

Risk Areas
ENCrEche

&%TWIKH D RERERER - ZER
- MRS RRR R A R

Principal Risks
TERR

Strategic Risks

BiRE AR

Operational Risks
LERKR

Financial Risks

Lupi e

Compliance Risks

Sensitivity to government policies; keeping up with new technologies and customers' taste; market competition risk,

reputation risk

HHTHRNERNE - REFENEEPRK  mHnFERR  BERR

Insufficient labour supply; workplace injury; disruption of IT system

BPNHETR - TH - BARMREGETT

Liquidity risk; credit risk; interest rate risk; inflation risk

RBETER  EERR - MEREE  BRER

Risk related to occupation safety and health; risk of non-compliance with ordinances related to employment; change

of listing rules and relevant company regulations and ordinances

AHRER

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the Group and it has
delegated to executive management to carry out the risk identification and monitoring
procedures. The objectives of the risk management are to enhance the govemance and
corporate management processes as well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable

levels of risks and losses.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, amongst others, (i) an annual
risk identification and analysis exercise which involves assessment of the consequence and
likelihood of risks and the development of risk management plans for mitigating such risks;
and (i) an annual review of the implementation of the risk management plans and fine

tuning of the implementation plan when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the management had outsourced its internal audit function
to an independent internal audit firm (the “Internal Auditor”). The Internal Auditor
reports directly to the Audit Committee on all internal audit matters. The internal audit
plan was submitted to the Audit Committee for approval prior to the commencement
of the internal audit work. The Audit Committee reviewed the internal audit report
and monitored the implementation of the improvements required on internal control

weaknesses identified.

Even though the Group does maintain an internal audit function, the Board has overall
responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Based on the review of the Group's internal control systems, the Directors
were satisfied that effective internal control measures as appropriate to the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 were implemented properly and that no significant areas

of weaknesses were identified.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will continue to review its corporate governance standards on a timely basis
and the Board endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the

required practices and standards including the provisions of the CG Code.
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RE #HEREARARS

Jia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
is pleased to present its environmental, social and goverance report in accordance with
the environmental, social and reporting guidelines as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules. The principal business of the Group is the provision of dining and event
hosting services and was prepared in accordance with the “Comply or Explain” Provisions
of the ESG Guide. The reporting period for this report is from | January 2019 to 3|
December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

Below are the Group's commitments to each of the focus area under its corporate social

responsibility framework:

A.  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Air Emissions

Oily fume containing particulate matter is emitted from the Group's kitchen
which may have negative impact on human health and create odour nuisance to
the neighbourhood. The Group is committed to reducing and better control of
such emissions through various measures such as installation of efficient filtering
equipment, regular maintenance of ventilation system, as well as selection of
restaurant locations with minimal impact to the neighbourhood as possible. As for
greenhouse gases, the most significant parts of the Group's carbon footprint are
sourced from fuel and electricity consumption in the Group's restaurants, factories
and offices. The policies on reduction of such emission are described in “Use of

Energy and Water” section below.

Water Discharge

The Group strictly follow the requirements as set out in the Water Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 358 of the Laws of Hong Kong) when the Group
discharge waste water. All of the Group's restaurants possess water pollution
control license issued by the Environmental Protection Department of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR"), and the Group have installed

sufficient equipment to ensure sewage is properly processed before discharge.
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Waste Management

The major type of waste generated from the Group's operations is food waste
from the Group's diners’ leftover, which is not directly controllable by us. However,
to help reduce wastage, the Group's restaurants’ operations manuals and
training packs contain food ordering and processing guidelines which have been
communicated to the Group's employees to raise their awareness on food waste
reduction, and the Group has also established recipes and portion controls so as
to avoid excessive food being catered. Paper waste is also generated from the
Group's administrative activities in offices, which the Group s taking an active role
to control through reducing paper use by double-sided printing, reusing printed
papers, replacing paper forms with electronic ones and recycling used papers. No
hazardous wastes were generated during the Reporting Period due to the Group's

business nature.

Use of Energy and Water

The Group consumes electricity and fuel for its restaurant operations. In order
to reduce energy use, the Group adopts a holistic management approach from
selection of energy efficient hardware, designing the Group's restaurant layout and
workflow with energy-saving considerations, to encouraging the Group's staff to
adopt green working practices. The same approach applies to water, for which the
Group supports water conservation through deploying advanced technology and

changing the behaviour of the Group's employees.

Use of Packaging Materials

To better retain the quality and ensure the safety of the Group's food products,
the Group uses certain packaging materials including takeaway boxes, plastic bags
as well as various disposables in the Group's restaurant operations. The Group
understands the environmental impact of such materials therefore we have set out
guidelines for the Group's staff to minimise the usage and encourage the Group's
customers to reuse and recycle as possible. Moreover, the Group prefers those
packaging materials which are made from environmentally-friendly substances and

are recyclable.
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Environment Management and Compliance

Since all of the Group's restaurants are located at prime locations, the Group
is aware of the importance of environmental management and have developed
mechanisms on identifying, assessing and mitigating the environmental risks arising
from the Group's operations. The Group did not note any material non-compliance

with environmental laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

SOCIAL

The Group aims to ensure that the health, safety, and welfare of its employees
are well taken care of and the Group acknowledges its responsibility towards
employees who may be affected by its activities. While the Group regards legislative
compliance as a minimum, whenever possible, the Group seeks to implement

higher health and safety standards throughout the Group.

Employment

The Group offers competitive packages, as well as development opportunities
to the Group's employees in order to attract talents. The Group has established
a comprehensive human resources policy to govern the Group's recruitment
and dismissal procedures, and set the Group's working hours, rest periods and
employees’ benefits in accordance with the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the

Laws of Hong Kong).

In addition, the Group prohibits discrimination of any kind. The Group ensures
equal opportunities in all of the Group’s human resources’ practices, regardless
of gender, pregnancy, marital status, disability, family status, and race. To better
recognise contribution of the Group's employees, the Group have established a fair
performance evaluation mechanism to promote and award employees on a regular

basis.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified any material non-

compliance with employment-related laws and regulations.
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Workplace Health and Safety

The Group seeks to create a safe working environment for the Group's employees.
The Group has established the Health and Safety at Work Policy to provide
guidelines and raise the awareness of safety in the Group's restaurants. Accidents
are reported to management and handled promptly in accordance with the
Group's standard procedures. The Group has also formed the Health and Safety
Committee to oversee the related risks and meet with the operation teams

regularly to understand their concemns on the working environment.

In order to further mitigate the health and safety risks in the Group's restaurants,
staff are required to receive trainings on health and safety topics such as first aid,

fire evacuation and other emergency procedures.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified any material non-

compliance with occupational safety and health-related laws and regulations.

Training and Development

To maintain a high level of service standard and to enhance the knowledge of the
Group's people, the Group provides on-the-job trainings to the Group's employees
in relation to food preparation and preservation, customer services and quality
control in different aspects of the restaurant operations. The Group ensures all of
the Group's staff could receive adequate training, at the time when they join the

Group and on a continuing basis.

Anti-Child and Forced Labour

All of the Group's restaurants and offices strictly comply with the requirements of
the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which explicitly
prohibit child and forced labour. Multiple control measures have been implemented
in the recruitment process to ensure all new joiners are legitimate workers in Hong

Kong.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified any material non-

compliance with child and forced labour-related laws and regulations.

Procurement Management

The Group requires its suppliers to deliver services or products that meet the
Group's internal quality standards and relevant regulatory requirements in Hong
Kong. To ensure that the Group's suppliers maintain a desired level of quality, the
Group only purchases from pre-approved suppliers who has passed the Group's
initial assessment. Prior to using their food products, inspection needs to be
carried out by the Group's chefs and those do not meet the Group's standards are
retumned to the supplier(s). Moreover, regular meetings and performance review of
suppliers are performed. Suppliers who failed to meet the Group's quality standard

are removed from the Group's supplier list on a timely basis.

Quality of Food, Service and Hygiene

The Group strives to consistently deliver high quality food and beverage services
and continuously enhancing the Group's customers' dining experience through
understanding their expectation and innovation. The Group also emphasises the
use of fresh and healthy ingredients and maintain a high quality hygiene standard in
the kitchens and dining areas of the Group's restaurants. The Group implements
appropriate internal control and management systems for environmental and
food safety. Sufficient and adequate training are provided to the Group's staff to
equip them with knowledge on properly handling of food, managing restaurants’
environment as well as serving the Group's customers. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has not identified any cases of material non-compliance with

laws and regulations relating to food hygiene matters.

Advertising and Menu Setting

In accordance with the Trade Description Ordinance (Cap. 362 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the Group ensures the contents of the Group's advertisements and
menus truly reflect the facts and are consistent with the Group's services and
products without exaggeration. The Group has not identified any material non-
compliance with advertising and labelling-related laws and regulations during the

Reporting Period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Data Privacy

The Group is committed to protecting the privacy of the Group's customers,
partners and staff in the collection, processing and use of their personal data. The
Group strictly follows the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (“PDPQ") and the Group has not identified any non-compliance
with the PDPO during the Reporting Period.

Anti-Corruption

The Group implements adequate internal controls in preventing and detecting

bribery, extortion and fraud.

To prevent any bribery or kickback arrangements between the Group's staff
and suppliers, the Group has implemented certain policies, such as supplier due-
diligence, segregation of duties, declaration of conflict of interest, etc, and has set
out the Group's expectations on the Group's employees’ code of conduct in the
employee handbook. The Group has also invited the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (“ICAC") to deliver anti-bribery talks to the Group's staff,

thereby enhancing their awareness.

The Group has not identified any material non-compliance with anti-corruption

related laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

Caring for the Community

The Group values its relationship with the community and participates in various
charitable events in order to support the underprivileged. The Group aims at
utilising its resources in creating a harmonious environment in the areas the Group
operate, and strengthening the Group's bonding to build the Group's brand in the
neighbourhood.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has made donations to a non-profit making
organisation in Hong Kong to support social welfare service in the community. The
Group also encourages its employees to participate in the charitable donations
and community services. In addition, the Group maintains an open channel
of communication with its stakeholders and communities to understand their
motivations, goals and needs through continuous conversation in order to achieve

the Group's contributions in corporate social responsibility activities.
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EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law as an

exempted company with limited liability on 21 August 2015.

The Shares have been listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange by way of the Share Offer
since 8 February 2018.

In connection with the Listing, the companies comprising the Group underwent a
reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”). Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation,
the Company became the holding company of the other members of the Group on
23 January 2018. Further details of the Group Reorganisation are set out in the section

headed "History, Reorganisation and Group Structure” of the Prospectus.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the audited consolidated financial statements.
The principal activities of the Group are predominately the provision of catering and

membership services.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the

audited consolidated financial statements on page 73.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year

ended 3| December 2019,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years is set out on pages |86 to 88 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Except for those included in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
for inclusion in the Prospectus, the Group had no definite future plans for material

investments and capital assets.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

USE OF PROCEEDS AND COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

Details of the use of proceeds and comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on

page |6 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note |5 to the audited consolidated financial

statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group at 3| December 2019 are set out in note 25 to

the audited consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year ended 31 December 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 3|

December 2019 are set out in note 27 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages |75 to 176 and note 35 to the audited consolidated financial statements

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$18.6 million (2018:
HK$41.7 million). Details of the reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2019 are

set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

EEERE

FEFERER KB RRERERE
BB
R BERE RXBERRERIFERLL
BHHBEN I REER cE[ERETRID
M8 -

M - BEREE

BEWOF A BILFEASENYE -
BERBEBENEDFRHENCERGENH
BRMEEIS ©

RITER
20195 12 A3 BARE BRI E IS5 ER4
BT A S RRMTE2S ©

Hal

BRFE
HZE2019F 12831 HIEFEARER W EET
A F| S EITE AR

[EZS
BZ2019F 12831 BILEEARAIPRAE £
B FENRERGA MBRRMET -

]
BE09F12A3IBLEFEASERARA
HRBEDFES HNEEREE W BT
REISEIT6EFARREHR LM S -

Ao B A

R2019F12A31 8 ' AREIREHEHS A
EVEFE2E (1961 FIEHI3 - KiRa RIEFT)
FEMAESIREENRI86BEEEIT (2018
F41788ET) - BEAAKRRAIN2019F12
A3 B R EF BN B ERAR M5

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F1k

49



50

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Since the Listing took place subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company did not redeem its listed securities, nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase, cancel or sell any of such listed securities for the year ended 3|

December 2019.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the

date of this report were as follows:
Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (appointed as director on 21 August 2015 and re-designated as an
executive Director and appointed as the chairperson of the Board and the chief executive

officer on 18 May 2017)

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (appointed as director on 21 August 2015 and re-designated

as an executive Director on 18 May 2017)
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (appointed on 23 January 2018)

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (appointed on 23 January 2018)
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony (appointed on 23 January 2018)

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least one-third of
the Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A

retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Director has given the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent

and meet the independent guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

(@)

Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 8 February 2018 (subject to
termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service contract),
which may be terminated by not less than one month's notice served by either
party on the other. The appointments are subject to the provisions of the Articles
of Association with regard to vacation of office of Directors and removal and

retirement by rotation of Directors.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a period of three years commencing from 8
February 2018 (subject to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant letter of appointment), which may be terminated by not less than one
month'’s notice served by either party on the other. The appointments are subject
to the provisions of the Articles with regard to vacation of office of Directors and
removal and retirement by rotation of Directors. Save for the directors’ fee, none
of the independent non-executive Directors is expected to receive any other
remuneration for holding their office as an independent non-executive Director

and a member of any board committees of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has entered into any service agreement with any

member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration Committee by

reference to the benchmarking of the market. The Company also looks into individual

Director's competence, duties, responsibilities and performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the

Group are set out in note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are set out

on pages |7 to 2| of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or an entity connected with any
of them had any material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, parent company or subsidiaries of the parent
company was a party and subsisting at any time during or at the end of the year ended 3|

December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, no contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or

any of their subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR'’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 3| December 2019
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company (including their
spouses or children under |8 years of age) to have any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company or any of its specified undertakings as defined in the Companies (Report of
the Board of Directors) Regulation or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares

in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not enter into or have any management
and/or administration contracts in respect of the whole or any principal business of the

Company.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

As disclosed in the Prospectus and as at the date of this report, Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan (the
spouse of Ms. WONG Pui Yain), and Mr. Pong Kin Yee, each had 15.25% shareholding
in Classified Group (Holdings) Limited, the holding company of a group of companies
comprising the Classified Group (Holdings) Limited, Classified Limited, The Pawn Limited,
Small Medium Large Limited and Classified Group Management Limited (formerly known
as Classified Bread and Cheese Limited) (together referred to as the “Classified Group”).
The Classified Group engaged in the business of restaurant operation in Hong Kong
and has interests in nine restaurants in Hong Kong and three franchised restaurants in
Indonesia. Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan and Mr. Pong Kin Yee are also the directors of Classified
Group (Holdings) Limited.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and above, the Directors are not aware of any
business and interest of the Directors nor the controlling shareholders of the Company
nor any of their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interests which any such person has or may have with the Group during the year ended

31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain and Giant Mind International Limited (“Giant Mind") (the “Controlling
Shareholders"”) entered into a deed of non-competition dated 23 January 2018 (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company (for itself and each of its
subsidiaries), pursuant to which each of the Controlling Shareholders has, unconditionally
and irrevocably, undertaken to the Company in the Deed of Non-Competition that she/
it will not, and will procure herfits close associates (other than members of the Group)
not to, for herself/itself or jointly with or acting for any other person, firm or company as
shareholder(s), director(s), partner(s), agent(s), employee(s) or otherwise, and whether
or not for profit, remuneration or other purpose, directly or indirectly be involved or
engaged in or undertake any business (other than the business of the Group) that directly
or indirectly competes, or may compete, with the Group's business or undertaking (the
“Restricted Activity”), or hold shares or interest in any companies or business that
compete directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders and/or her/its close associates hold less
than 5% of the total issued shares of any company (whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange or other stock exchange) which is engaged in any business that is or may be in
competition with any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do not

control 10% or more of the composition of the board of directors of such company.

Further, each of the Group's Controlling Shareholders has undertaken that if any new
business investment or other business opportunity relating to the Restricted Activity (the
“Competing Business Opportunity”) is identified by or made available to her/it or any
of herfits close associates, she/it shall, and shall procure that her/its close associates shall,

refer such Competing Business Opportunity to the Company on a timely basis.

For further details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders — Non-competition undertaking and

corporate governance measures to manage conflicts of interests” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of her/its compliance
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up
to the date of this report. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition have been complied by each of the Controlling Shareholders during the year
ended 3| December 2019 and up to the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

3)

Interests and short positions of Directors and chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
Directors and chief executives of the Company were taken or deemed to have
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO), (i) recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings
by directors of listed issuer as referred to in Rules 546 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing

Rules, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares

EEERE

ExEENE

2)

EERRSTRABRA DR REMAB
EENRD - HERG R EERNES
KA

R2019F 128318 EZRARARS
TBABRARARISKEBE B (E&
REHRBERAIEXVER) R - 48
RO KEEED - (\VEAREESR
HEROIEXVHBET RSN BEMNER
DRI LB PR AR (BIERE
EHRBEEBEXVIET K8 DI
BEIRABEZRARAREITHA
ERENRRIAR)  ()VEARAR
BERIEERIESUEEERETNE
R AR ERERAR - (i) RIEGEM
FHARRIESAGEEE5.67 GRPTAE |
METAEFEIR MR EREST
HERNR RO ERRXE N
T

() REGREBRGETE

Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares shareholding
EEpR 5%,/ ERtE RBEE BERESL
Ms. WONG Pui Yain Interest of a controlled corporation "N 409,670,000 N 47.64%
AR L RS EE R ()
Ms. WONG Pui Yain Beneficial owner Mete) 66,816,000 Mt 7.77%
=R L L T2 A D (D)
Note BizE

409,670,000 Shares are held by Giant Mind, which is solely owned by Ms. WONG
Pui Yain and 66,816,000 Shares by Ms. WONG Pui Yain in her personal capacity.
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(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares in associated

corporations of the Company

(i) RERAEHZERGREEK
HHILFE

Name of associated Number of Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity Shares shareholding
EEpR HEEE SR g% R E BERESL
Ms. WONG Pui Yain Giant Mind (o Beneficial owner 1,000 (Nete) 100%
AL Giant Mind ") BB A ()
Note BT

Giant Mind held 47.64% of issued Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and/or short positions which the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company were taken or deemed to have pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO); (i) recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed

issuer as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Interests and short positions of the substantial shareholders and other persons

in shares and underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, so far as it is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had or were
deemed to have interests or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or which would fall to be disclosed under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

(i) Long position in the Shares
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()  REGHIFE

Number of Approximate
Shares held/ percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested shareholding
i/ BERER BAEFR
nE/ 8 5%,/ EEHE RZEE Bt
Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan Interest of spouse 476,486,000 Mot 55.41%
BB E ALiBfEa ()
Giant Mind Beneficial interest 409,670,000 47.64%
Giant Mind BED
Note Bisr
Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan, the spouse of Ms. WONG Pui Yain, is deemed under the BREEHFRIPERY  BHEELE

SFO to be interested in these 476,486,000 Shares in which Ms. WONG Pui Yain is

interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors have not been
notified by any person who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or which fall to be disclosed under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the Share Option
Scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the Shareholders passed
on 23 January 2018. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 8 February 2018 upon the listing of the Company's shares on GEM, and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption of the Share

Option Scheme and no share option was outstanding as at 31 December 2019.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide additional
incentives to the Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to

Shareholders. The Board may offer to grant an option to any Qualifying Grantees.

“Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates and any person who is an
officer of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Employee™); (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Secondee”);
(3) any consultant, agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or
any affiliates; (4) any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of goods
or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee thereof (collectively the
“Eligible Person”); or (i) any trust for the benefit of an Eligible Person or his immediate
family members or any company controlled by an Eligible Person or his immediate family

members.

The limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under any schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit
being exercised. The maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the Shares in issued following the

completion of the Capitalisation Issue and the Share Offer, i.e. 86,000,000 Shares.
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No option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to that person in any I2-month period up to the date of the latest grant

exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from
the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay
the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant 28 days from the date of the offer
(or such period as the Board may specify in writing). The exercise price of the options is
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is
the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets

on the offer date;

b)  the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's dail
g gp g Y
quotation sheets for the five Business Days immediately preceding the offer date;

or

() the nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 8

February 2018, after which no further options will be granted or offered.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the sub-section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed

during the year ended 31 December 2019.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER
In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed

Innovax Capital Limited (“Innovax”) to be the compliance adviser. As informed by
Innovax, neither Innovax nor any of its directors or employees or close associates had
any interest in the share capital of the Company or any member of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if any) or otherwise in relation to the
Company which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of
the GEM Listing Rules (except for the compliance adviser agreement dated 26 January
2018 entered into between the Company and Innovax (the “Compliance Adviser

Agreement”)) as at 3| December 2019.
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Pursuant to the Compliance Adviser Agreement, Innovax has received and will receive

fees for acting as the Company's compliance adviser.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no material breach

of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As a restaurant operator, the Group has a large and diverse customer base. There is no
customer significantly dominated in Group's revenue. For the year ended 31 December
2019, purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
19.0% of the Group's total purchases of raw materials and consumables consumed. During
the same year, purchases from the Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately

4.3% of the Group's total purchases of raw materials and consumables.

Save for the purchases from related companies as set out in note 30 to the audited
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors, their respective associates, or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any significant beneficial interest in the major

customers and suppliers disclosed above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group in 2019 are set out in

note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Among these related party transactions, the purchase of goods from Cigarro, rental
expenses to companies with 50% owned by Ms. Wong Pui Yain (which relates to the
lease of the office from Golders Way Company Limited which is owned as to 50% by Ms.
Wong Pui Yain and 50% by her father) have continued after the Listing and have become
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. These
transactions all fall within the de minimis rule under Rule 20.74(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules and are fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure

requirements.
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Save as aforesaid, none of the related party transactions set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements constitute a “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules because either (i)
the transaction was an one-off transaction which took place before the Listing; or (ii) the

transaction was continuous in nature but had been discontinued before the Listing.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and will review and improve the corporate governance practices

and standards constantly.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 41 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a

sufficient public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under the laws of Caymans Islands
or the Articles which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to the existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director is entitled under the Company's
Avrticles to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as he or

she shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has maintained a directors and officers liability insurance during the year
ended 31 December 2019. To the extent as permitted by the Companies Ordinance, a
directors’ liability insurance is currently in place to protect the Directors against potential

costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 364 employees in Hong Kong (2018: 290

employees in Hong Kong). Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and in accordance with the performance, qualification(s) and experience of each individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses, based on each individual's performance, are paid to
employees as recognition and in reward for their contributions. Other fringe benefits
such as medical insurance, retirement benefits and other allowances are offered to all the

Group's employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

With effect from 12 March 2020, the Group has suspended the operations of two
restaurants in Wanchai, namely “22 Ships” and “Ham & Sherry”. The Group has also
planned to suspend the operations of Old Bailey and Behind Bars from May 2020. During
the period of suspension, the Group will explore new restaurant concepts to be adopted
at those outlets and carry out the necessary internal renovation works. The Group will
closely monitor the market conditions and seek to reopen the said restaurants in due
course. Besides, “Commissary”, the Group's another restaurant located in Admiralty, will
be closed in April 2020. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated ||

March 2020.

On 23 March 2020, Champ Winner Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement as tenant with Meridian International
Holdings Limited as landlord in respect of the lease of a premise for the operation
of the Group's new restaurant under the tradename of “REN". Please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 23 March 2020 for further detalils.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship with its key
stakeholders, including its employees, customers and suppliers, to meet its immediate
and long-term business goals. During the year ended 3| December 2019, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and its employees, customers and

suppliers.

The Group recognises employees as one of its valuable assets and strictly complies
with the labour laws and regulations and reviews regularly the existing staff benefits for
improvement. Apart from the reasonable remuneration packages, the Group also offers
other employee benefits, such as medical insurance. The Group provides good quality
services to its customers and keeps a database for direct communications with recurring
customers for developing a long-term trusted relationship. The Group also maintains

effective communication and develops a long-term business relationship with its suppliers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company as well as a discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance during the year ended 31 December 2019 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position can be found in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section set out on pages 9 to |6 of this report. These discussions form part

of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report, which forms part of this report, is set

out on pages 42 to 47 of this report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The first AGM of the Company will be held on 26 May 2020, the notice of which shall be
sent to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles, the GEM Listing

Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 21 May 2020 to 26 May 2020,

both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.

Shareholders are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on 20 May 2020.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from
29 November 2019 as the Company could not reach a consensus with Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu in respect of the audit fee of the Company for the year ended 3| December
2019.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year have been audited by
BDO Limited who shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the

annual general meeting to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Jia Group Holdings Limited

Wong Pui Yain

Chairperson

26 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jia Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 73 to 185, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (*HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements which indicates
that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$31,957,000 and has net cash outflow of
HK$27,557,000 during the financial year ended 31 December 2019. As of that date, the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$39,747,000. As stated in
note 3(b), these conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 3(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not

modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the “Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have determined the matters

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Revenue from catering services of the Group’s restaurant operations
(Refer to notes 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements)

We identified revenue from catering services of the Group's restaurant operations
as a key audit matter, due to the significance of revenue from catering services of the
Group's restaurant operations to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. For the year ended 3| December 2019, revenue from catering

services of the Group's restaurant operations amounted to HK$2 19,065,000.

We focused on revenue reconciliation of daily sales report to cash receipts and credit
card settlements as the vast majority of revenue was settled in cash or by credit card.
In addition, the recording of revenue involves high volume of small amount transactions
through various systems. Any errors arising from capturing of data or interfaces of data
amongst the various systems may have significant impact on revenue. Therefore, it

required significant time and resources for the audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Revenue from catering services of the Group’s restaurant operations (Cont d)

Our response:

. Obtaining an understanding of the Group's revenue recognition process and
validating the management's key internal controls over the revenue recognition

process;

0 Performing analytical procedures on revenue through comparing the actual result
of current year with that of prior year and assessing reasonableness of its trend in

relation to the Group's restaurant operation;

0 Verifying the daily sales reports, cash receipts and credit card settlement on sample
basis; and
J Verifying the accuracy and completeness of the daily sales reports generated from

the back end systems on sample basis.

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in

respect of the Group’s restaurants

(Refer to notes 4, 5, 15, 16 and |7 to the consolidated financial statements)

The Group had significant assets on its consolidated statement of financial position,

including property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 3| December 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BT RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in
respect of the Group’s restaurants (Cont d)

Management is required to perform an impairment assessment where indicators of
impairment are identified, on these assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
these assets were allocated to cash generating units (“CGUs"), and management has
assessed the recoverable amount of these assets based on higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
management judgement was used to appropriately identify CGUs and to determine
the key assumptions and estimations. Based on the above assessment performed, for
the year ended 31 December 2019, management concluded that impairment loss of
approximately HK$ 1,454,000 in respected of the Group's property, plant and equipment
and HK$3,979,000 in respect of its right-of-use assets were made.

Our response:

J Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology in respect of the

assessment of the recoverable amount;

J Assessing the appropriateness of the management's identification of CGUs based

on our understanding of the Group's business;
J Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions and estimations used; and

0 Assessing the appropriateness of key input data used in the assessment of the

recoverable amount.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 3| December
2018, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those

statements on 21 March 2019,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process. The

Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BT RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

0 identify and assess the risks of matenial misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

0 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont d)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concemn.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

B 2B RS

BHMAEL RS BB RRAERENSE

(&)

«  HEEEMRAESHRNBEELERE
HEFHER AR KBNS -

- HEZSRARELESTERNREN
& - WIRIRFTERNEREE -
HEEEAFEASRABRAAENEX
MHEEMN - AR ERE BEREAN
FTREERNELEARE - WRE
FRRFEERNTHEEL  MBELERE
BEENRETRACAETEHEANTE
HRPOEERE - RERRORED
R’ ABFREEITESNER - BF
m%ﬁ%gmﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁtﬁﬂﬁ
HBEZERE ° AW ARFEKIBENA

RRER BERETRERERE -

o TEGAVBRENBEZHAN £
%ﬂmﬁ~aﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂvu&ﬁé
BHREEAATFREABER ZHMEIE o

- 3 EEERERIEBEPINNBE
AMERT R LEENEZEE - AEYH
BAMBBRRERER - BFRERHE
BZHIE - EENT - EEREX
BRAEZHEE -

BFEERZEEN (AR ER)FENE
REHE  BEZH BEABREREETE
B ZERRBRETEEZT AN LA
EH A ERERERK

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F3R

71



72

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB ET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont d)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang

Practising Certificate no. P04743

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A

REMBERARE M BRRARENE
£ (&)

ENREZEZEGELER  BLHESE
ﬁéﬁﬁ%i& EEEEEEE R WH
REBRBUGAEMERAEYEES
HH B MEMEMEIE - AR (EH)AN
b E i o

h

B
mn K

REREREBENFET  EERTHAHMHE
’Aﬁﬁﬁﬁmg§ @Ex%%ﬁ'ﬁﬁ
BREIEEREE TEEREMRETHE
m%%%ﬁ’%#ﬁéﬁiﬁxmﬁﬂﬁﬁ
BEE dEERFEENBLT  MREE
RREEERETERESHENNEHE
RBREENLRNE - EFAETER
BETEBZER -

BRVERRETMERAARAA
HESEHE

ERE
MEEZZRT 1 P04743

& 20209F3 8268



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEeEEREMEEKER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FieE TER TET
Revenue A 6 219,065 230,256
Other income HA WA 8 2,761 6,986
Other gains and losses H Ao &5 18 9 (56) 195
Raw materials and consumables used P FRIR IR (53,776) (54,564)
Staff costs BIRAR (92,617) (92275)
Depreciation e (36,709) (12791)
Property rentals and related expenses WEE S MERER X (16,816) (36,553)
Utility expenses AERAxX (7,243) (7,642)
Advertising and promotion expenses BE REER (9,445) (10,486)
Other operating expenses HA &R (27,614) (27,428)
Finance costs E- (DN 10 (2,744) (490)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment  #13 ~ BB kX ERREEE (1,454) (5,796)
Impairment loss of trade and other receivable B 5N E b EW BN RIERSE (1,070) —
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEERRIERRE (3,979) —
Listing expenses EmREx — (5,085)
Loss before taxation BT AT ES 1B I (31,697) (15,673)
Income tax expense Pt 12 (260) (753)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABERZERSEE
for the year (31,957) (16,426)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year A T A T (G FREE K
attributable to: PHRAXERE :
— Owners of the Company . YNGIE 2N (31,957) (15/435)
— Non-controlling interests —IEE R R — (991)
(31,957) (16,426)
Loss per share FRER 14
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE (B) (3.72) (1.83)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SmEMBMRRE
AT 3| DECEMBER 2019
2019512 A31 H

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FieE TER TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BE &E& 15 31,528 19,370
Right-of-use assets ERERE 16 34,392 =
Investment in an associate REE AR E 8 — —
Deferred tax assets EIENIAEE 28 2,850 2996
Deposits ®e 19 13,922 11,874
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFRITER 20 4,500 4,500
87,192 38,740
Current assets REEE
Inventories 75 21 5,857 4,825
Trade and other receivables, deposits and BHREMBKRIE e K
prepayments AN FIA 19 16,490 13,250
Amount due from a controlling shareholder JEUS — A AR AR SR 5K 1E 22 98 58
Amount due from an associate JEU —FelEse & A B 5008 22 914 359
Tax recoverable EEAET 1,447 841
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LB S 20 8,142 35,699
32,948 56,032
Current liabilities wEAE
Trade and other payables and accrued charges B 5 REMENTIBERETER 23 39,153 19,655
Contract liabilities AHAE 24 1,761 1,255
Amounts due to related companies JE1 AR A B FRIR 22 226 %4
Bank borrowings RITIEFN 25 3,902 4543
Tax payable eI IR 284 314
Lease liabilities HERE 16 27,369 —
72,695 25861
Net current (liabilities)/assets B (BETFE) EEFE (39,747) 30,171
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERREBARE 47,445 68911
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBARR &R
AT 3| DECEMBER 2019
2019412 A31 H

2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bz FExT T
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank borrowings RITER 25 = 3902
Provision B 26 3,852 3,845
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 28 35 32
Lease liability HEBRE 16 14,383 —
18,270 7779
Net assets EEZRE 29,175 61,132
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital R 27 8,600 8,600
Reserves [l 20,575 52,532
Total equity ERAH 29,175 61,132

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 185 were approved and authorised

for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

WONG PUI YAIN

EEEDN202053 B26 BHLE RIFHET3EE,

METI3EI8SE 2
THRERE :

FEFBERE YR TIA

WAN SUET YEE CHERRY

DIRECTOR
BEH
EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERRESER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARRAELR
Non-
Share Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve losses Total interests equity
Bx RHEE  AMRR REER & FERER  REEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Fin FiEn T Fin FiEn TR
(note a)
(Hfia)
At | January 2018 R0I8EIAIR 390 = 54,603 (15960) 39,033 ) 38811
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year ERBEREERAR = = = (15435) (15435) (%91) (16426)
Arising from group reorganization SEsREE (390) 41,204 (40814) = = = =
Capitalsation issue (note b) BA{ & (Witb) 6915 (8915) - - - — -
Issue of new shares upon share offer (note ) Ry B ERETHR (k) 1,685 48850 — = 50535 = 50535
Transaction costs attributable to issue of new shares BTHRIEERAHA — (9538) — — (9538) = (9538)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder of a AT IBA AR
subsidiary (note 13) RE (W) — - — — - 250) (250)
Acquisttion of addtional interests in subsidiaries (note 32) JKBEMIBA ARESMER (Fi7E32) — = (3463) = (3463) 1463 (2,000)
At 3] December 2018 and | January 2019 RW0I8E12A3IBR2019%F 1 AR 8,600 73601 10326 (313%) 61,132 = 61,132
Loss and total comprehensive expense ERBEREERAR
for the year = = = (31,957) (31,957) = (31,957)
At 3] December 2019 R019E 124318 8,600 73,601 10,326 (63,352) 9,175 = 29,175

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A



Notes:

(®)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Other reserve represents the aggregate amount of |) the differences between the
considerations received and the proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net
assets attributable to the relevant interests upon the deemed disposal of partial interest
in subsidiaries; 2) the differences between the considerations paid and the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the relevant interests upon
the deemed acquisition/acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries; 3) acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary by a controlling shareholder as deemed capital contribution;
4) reserve arising from the group reorganisation, which mainly comprises issue of shares by
Big Team Ventures Limited (“Big Team") and the Company to acquire equity interest in
subsidiaries and shareholders' loans of respective subsidiaries with an aggregate loan balance
of HK$48,330,000; 5) deemed capital contribution from shareholders through waiver of
amounts due to the then shareholders of HK$3,589,000; and 6) HK$1,825,000 upon the
waiver of inter-company loans to More Earn by group entities that caused an increase in net

assets of More Eam attributable to non-controlling interests.

On 23 January 2018, the Company capitalised an amount of HK$6,9 15,000 by issuing
additional 691,500,000 shares, credited as fully paid, to the then existing shareholders of the
Company in proportion as nearly as may be to their respective shareholding in the Company

without involving fractions.

On 8 February 2018, the Company issued 168,450,000 shares at HK$0.30 per share upon

the share offer.

RERmBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

Hi#EEA T SENAE : ) ERRER
BRLEHNED BN D R BRI SRS
EEFERAELINMENEZSE  )BEMAK
BEGAKEWEEHTE A A EIMER 418
AERELREEFEREELIOENZE
88 1 3)— R AR AR R W — P B A Bl A EE
IR (RIEEE) 4 EESEEMES 2
f# + EZEFEBig Team Ventures Limited ([Big
Team ) RANA B AU I 8 2 A1k e &5 Bt
BARMRRE R (BB 5458748330000
BT METRG 5B RERENSRHRE
HRIR3,589,0008 LM ERRITE + K6)&
B E 254 T More EamMIEBAARIHEE
FCBH TR B (E More Eam B 2 FE1E
fN1,825,0007 7T ©

R20185 | A23H + RARI#6,9150007%
THHRETAERE  AARBERSRE
BROKERTEAIEEARAERER
IR AR A A B AR A L 5[] 1 2 B 1T RE A
691,500,0000% %15 + I ARRFREE °

R201852A8H » MIRMHEER - ARENE
BR%0.30/8 T3 1T 168,450,000 i 17 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

LEREMRER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Loss before taxation BrEtAIEE (31,697) (15,673)
Adjustments for: AT SBELAE

Interests income S A (97) (310)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRBTE 10,714 12,791

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 25,995 =

Finance costs REMKAR 2,744 490

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BEKRENER 70 53

Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment ME - R R BRI ERR 1,454 5796

Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEENRERE 3,979 —

Impairment loss of trade receivable B S RYG AR AR 528 —

Impairment loss of other receivable H it e IB R R E R 1R 542 —

Impairment loss on rental deposits HemeRESR — 201

Provision for onerous contract BRIt NRE — 599

Provision for/(reversal) of reinstatement provision R R,/ (BE) 137 (224)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital LEEREHHIKERENE 14,369 3,723
Increase in inventories FEEm (1,032) (531)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables, deposits B 5 REAMEWKTIE - e Kk

and prepayments FBANFIE (E),/md (6,358) 3272
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables and accrued B 5 & E A ERFIE K

charges FEFTEREM,/ () 17,948 (2793)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities BRaEEN,/ (i) 506 (102)
Decrease in amounts due to related companies JEE 1~ RS A R FRIER 132 (190)
Increase in amount due from an associate JRE LT & /A B FRIBIE AN (555) —
Decrease in amount due from controlling shareholders JFE LS 5 A R R TE R > — 45
Decrease in amounts due from non-controlling shareholders FEUS T B 1 B JE PR AR AR SR A

of subsidiaries HIERE D — 140
Cash generated from operations KREEEMNHRE 25,010 3,564
Income tax refund/(paid) RE/(BER)FAEE 253 (3,669)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ~ &&FBES /(FTA)M

ACTIVITIES BT 25,263 (105)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEREREBR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interests received RE )] 97 310
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REEEIRITER — 1,000
Repayment from related companies ) NG = 308
(Advance to)/repayment from a controlling shareholder (M—BERRRRR),/
—RERRRER (40) 3997
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BB KREH
PSR 21 425
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BEN&E (21,009) (7.573)
Purchases of right of use assets BEERESE = —
Advance to an associate [ —FRIEE & 12 RIEAR = (660)
Repayment from an associate —MEE R RIER — 912
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEB AL S FHE (20,931) (1281)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Interests paid ERFLE (307) (490)
Repayment of bank borrowings BIBIRT ﬂﬁ%’\ (4,543) 9,167)
Advances from related companies )N — 90
Repayments to related companies ]z} N Tﬁxﬂ — (487)
Payment for lease liabilities MEREBRR (27,039) —
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary A T BB A RIZERE AR AR ER
B S, — (250)
Payment for acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries UGREMT B A R 5B MERS N TR — (2,000)
Proceeds from issue of new shares FITHRAFTIS TR — 50,535
Payments of transaction costs attributable to issue of new shares 2 Z1THTARFE(G X Z R AN = (9,538)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM FINANCING ~ BUE EE) (FTA), B4
ACTIVITIES REeFH (31,889) 28,693
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBLEEY(RD) &M
CASH EQUIVALENTS k] (27,557) 27,307
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING RENNRERBESEN
OF THE YEAR 35,699 8,392
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR, RERMRERALEEY
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH (BRITERRRE) 8,142 35,699
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VB BRKE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of
the Cayman Islands on 21 August 2015 and its shares have been listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 February
2018. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Giant Mind International
Limited (“Giant Mind"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and is controlled by Ms. Wong Pui Yain (“Ms. PY Wong"). The address of the
Company's registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in the

corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as investment holding company and the principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“"HK$"),
which is also the functional currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to

the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Pursuant to the group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”) in the section
headed “Corporate Reorganisation” in Appendix V to the prospectus of the
Company dated 29 January 2018 (the "Prospectus”), the Group Reorganisation
was completed on 23 January 2018 by interspersing the Company between the
shareholders of Big Team and Big Team, and the Company became the holding

company of the companies now comprising the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL (Contd)

Prior to the completion of the Group Reorganisation, the Group comprising the
Company and its subsidiaries resulting from the Group Reorganisation have been
under the common control of Ms. PY Wong throughout the years ended 31
December 2018 or since their respective dates of incorporation, where there is a
shorter period and is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the principles of merger accounting
in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") as if the Company had always been the holding company
of the Group.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash
flows of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2018 are prepared as if
the current group structure had been in existence throughout the years ended 31

December 2018 or since the date of incorporation where there is a shorter period.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE
—REH (&)
REBSEHTHKA - BEESEEMES
HAKE (BEARARENBRARDR
BE0I8F12A3BLEFEXASEN
s B e (ARG B A% ) — B

REMA L L HFES - YRR BHE
REERE - Al HEFBERRTIRE

REEMAE ((BEGHMAE )R

2 GsHE5I £S5 [ AEFIEH &
HahE IR dna s e iR AR
B BNARR -ERAKENERR

= o

A

AEBHZE2018F 12831 BIEFERLE
EEEREMZEREE  REERZ
BRIGABRERERLCERE - B
RRNEEEENEZE2018F 124318
IFFEEREFMAL BB (AREH
RA%E)EFHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. FERAEBUBREED (EBHB
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) HEERA )
(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 @) BRI RETERUERE

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the

B -RA2019F1 B I BEXK

BEEGMAGERMETRA
SEARGE R ERERAH]

Group. ERMBMEEINRBERBR
HEANEETA -

HKFRS 16 Leases

BERBHRELENF 65 HE

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

BE (ERHBREREERS) -2BEBT  IEHNREREN T

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

BEMBRELEFIH (EFTA) REETFIELEHE

Amendments to HKAS 9 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

BB GERFE 195 (BFTK) BEICHREBEC

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

BRGRERF85% (BTA) N AN =R i 0E 3 F

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS [, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

BRMBRELNFEN - BEUBRS BRABRELER2015F 22017 FBHNFE L

ERIFE |15« BALEERE RN
EesHERFE235 ((B5]K)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases have been summarised in
below. The other new or amended HKFRSs that are effective from | January

2019 did not have any significant impact on the Group's accounting policies.

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs and interpretation in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont'd)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting treatment for lease
accounting, primarily for accounting for lessees. It replaces HKAS
|7 Leases (“HKAS 17"), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int |5 Operating
Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. From a lessee's
perspective, almost all leases are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a right-of-use assets and a lease
liabilities, with the narrow exception to this principle for leases
which the underlying assets are of low-value or are determined
as short-term leases. From a lessor's perspective, the accounting
treatment is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. For details of
HKFRS 16 regarding its new definition of a lease, its impact on the
Group's accounting policies and the transition method adopted by the
Group as allowed under HKFRS 16, please refer to section (i) to (iv)

of this note.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE
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BAE B BHEERE
16558y &/ &

BERMBREEDSE 65
HEESNETREE
HEAEY  FEZAR
AREHEERE - £R
REBGHENEI7RA
E([EBEFEMNE 7
Sel) - BA (BB B®RE
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g)-REFLIRTEY
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/

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F3R

83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont'd)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont'd)

(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Contd)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect
approach and recognised all the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated
losses at the date of initial application. The comparative information
presented in 2018 has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS |7 and related interpretations as allowed by
the transition provision in HKFRS 6.

The following tables summarised the impact of transition to HKFRS
|6 on statement of financial position as of 3| December 2018 to that

of | January 2019 (increase/(decrease)):

2.

ERERMKREER (EBHE

HE®ER]) (&)

@) BEREIT RETEBUBERE
B -HA019F 1 BIRER(E)

() HAEBHBHEENE
I16RIHE (&)

AEBEERABRFEE)
ERELEHHHREEAS
1657 - W EREAEL
HHREENE 165K
AR FERIBER
BRERBHNFNR
BIRAERIEEE - 12018
FEIMEBRENTES
o WEERERB S
ERIE 7R REBBRBHR
HREAE | 657 1B RS
AFRERREZ R -

TRBBEZEENS
WMEERF I 6FEEHZE
2018F 12H3IHEHZE
2019% | B I BRF AR
KEFE LM/ (RD)) -

HK$000
TER
Consolidated statement of financial position as at R2019F 1 A&
| January 2019 mEMBARRER
Right-of-use assets EREEE 54,614
Property, plant and equipment ER (447)
Lease liabilities (non-current) MEREGERE) 31,906
Lease liabilities (current) MERE(RE) 25,165
Provision Bl (599)
Trade and other payables and accrued charges B 5 R E A R TIB R IEET &R (2,305)
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2.  APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont d)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont'd) (@)

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

2. EREEMBHREER (EFEME
|EER ) (#)

R RETBEUBRSE

R -RA2019F 1B BER(E)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Cont d) () BHHEBHBREEAE
I16RIHE (&)
The following reconciliation explains how the operating lease AT SRR A 2018 4F 12
commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 at the end of 31 A3 BERKERAERES
December 2018 could be reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date FHERE 7R RBENLE
of initial application recognised in the statement of financial position as MERAEEN20195F1 A |
at | January 2019: B 69 B B 0 5% P B AR
BERERRHNEEAR
HOSBRIE -
HK$000
TER
Reconciliation of operating lease commitment to REEEREEAEEE
lease liabilities KR
Operating lease commitment as of 31 December 2018 FR20184F 12 A31 BRYKL & THEAIE 61,616
Less: short term leases for which lease terms end within B HEHIR2019F12A318A
31 December 2019 HRZEHHE (945)
Less: low-value leases for which lease terms end within B MEHIR2019F 12431 BA
31 December 2019 ERZEEERE (12)
Less: non-lease component W IEEEK S (127)
Less: future interest expenses R N (3461)
Total lease liabilities as of | January 2019 M2019F1 A1 BNHEESELH 57,071

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to

lease liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position as at |

January 2019 is 5%.

R2019% 1 B | B 2Bk
MENERZHBEEEM
FE AR 2 N 19 A 38
AR F5% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont'd)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont'd)

(i)

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract, or part of a
contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. A contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
when the customer, throughout the period of use, has both: (a) the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the identified asset and (b) the right to direct the use of the identified

asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components, unless the
lessee apply the practical expedient which allows the lessee to elect,
by class of underlying asset, not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and instead account for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a single

lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont'd)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont d)

(i)

Accounting as a lease

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as an operating lease
or a finance lease based on the extent to which risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor or the
lessee. If a lease is determined as an operating lease, the lessee
would recognise the lease payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset under the lease would not be

recognised in the statement of financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but HKFRS 6 provides accounting policy choices for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets (the Group has leased mobile phones, laptop
computers and photocopying machines) and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term. The Group recognised a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date of a

lease.

2. EREEVBERSE

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont'd)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont'd)

(i) Accounting as a lease (Cont d)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an investment
property or a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
Group applies the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont'd)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont'd)

(i)

Accounting as a lease (Contd)

Lease Liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of
the lease. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group shall use the Group's

incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the

lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont'd)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont'd)

(iii)  Accounting as a lease(Contd)
Lease Liability (Contd)

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the
lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g, a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a

change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and
account for all each lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component for all leases.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A

2

FEAEEMBEREER (FEMHE
|EER ) (#)

(@)

S YA CHES b
R -RA2019F 1B BER(E)

(i) ERHEEHETERE ()

HERE (&)

RFte B 8% - ABEAK
BATHAGFEHESR
& ()L MBRE A R A
ERENFE ()RR
HEARBREELNEE
R R EFTERE
1B DA S B £F fo] 22587 2T 1 3K
REEBT  mEEHIL
RBEMEENRREE
NRes  HERZS -
EEEEHENREDK
BEREEENTLEE -

AKECREETERDIFH
BRI D YUBAAERETR
BEHEERMD "(IEEE
FHRERBD AKIEE—

HERD



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. ERAEBVBREEN(EBYE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont d) BEER D (&)
(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont'd) @) BEREIT RETEBUBERE
B -R2019F 1 AIBER(E)
(iv)  Transition (v) BE

As mentioned above, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
cumulative effect approach and recognised all the cumulative effect of
initially applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses at the date of initial application (I January
2019). The comparative information presented in 2018 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS [6.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at the date of | January
2019 for leases previously classified as operating leases applying HKAS
|7 and measured those lease liabilities at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at | January 2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-use assets at |
January 2019 for leases previously classified operating leases under
HKAS 17 at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application. For all these right-of-use assets,
the Group has applied HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets at | January
2019 to assess if there was any impairment as on that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont'd)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2019 (Cont'd)

(iv)

Transition (Cont d)

The Group has also applied the follow practical expedients: (i)
applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics; (i) applied the exemption of not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases with term that will end
within 12 months of the date of initial application (I January 2019)
and accounted for those leases as short-term leases; (iii) exclude the
initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at |
January 2019 and (iv) used hindsight in determining the lease terms if

the contracts contain options to extend or terminate the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the practical expedients such
that: (i) HKFRS 16 is applied to all of the Group's lease contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and
(i) not to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease under HKAS 7 and HK(IFRIC)-Int4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. ERAEBVBREEN(EBUK
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont d) |EER ) (&)
(b)  New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective (b) EEMEEKRERGITTEE

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group's
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply

these changes on the date they become effective.

AEBMEHREER

AT LR 6% [ B 75 ¥R 3R VB AR
ZHERIERTE AR RE R
RIE&MB M - BRARLER - AR
BARKERPRM - AREE A
ATEIN T LRI LR B e AL

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business'

BRI RELEINR (BETF) RBHEE'

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 Definition of material

BREMERR I RRBLGERFSH (BF]A) EAUNER

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform!

BRI HRELENEIN BEGHLEAERE  MEREESRE

BBIBHELERE75 (BT A)

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

BRI HRELERE 175 RRAE 47

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

BBMBMEENE 05 REBGHLER REFEABENRRAE LR AEENHESRA

52855 (IBFT )

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 202 |

The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after | January 2018. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments of the amendments

continue to be permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all.above
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules").

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

During the year, the Group has incurred a net loss of HK$31,957,000 and
has net cash outflows of HK$27,557,000 and at the end of reporting period,
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$39,747,000.

In addition, Hong Kong government has reported certain confirmed cases of
Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") subsequent to 3| December 2019, which
have negative impact to the usual business environment of the region as a
whole, for instance, the decrease in revenue on catering services. Pending
development of such subsequent non-adjusting event, the Group's financial

results may be affected.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A

3.

MR

(@)

AREH

REMBRERDBERMEEAS
AU BREED - BAGER
(BB RRE(AT
REIEBMBREERNDIAR
BAEDAGOINHBEREHES -
WEAN - ERE M SRR E A AT

GEMEZ# LRI ([ GEM EMAR
AlDFTRENBRBEEAR

TEEERBEEERR

A MR DRBE L KAE
EREREPRER  FEELT
XFE 2 &5 R °

TR AEERELEERFR
31,957,000/ 7T R IR & 7 FHE A
27,557,000/ 7T + RS AR
SENRBDEERLAERDEE
39,747,000/ 7T °

BESN - 20196 12 A31 B 2% -
BABNEREE THEEMRA
F([coviD-19)) B2l - B4
D EEBNIEREEREENK
BEETE  fINERRBEHEA
B o RTZIEIFABREHE
BRE  ARENMBEETER
7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

(b)  Basis of measurement and going concern assumption (Cont d)

All the above events and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets

and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The directors have given careful consideration to the Group's financial
performance and liquidity position. On the basis that the Group's operating
results and cash flows will be improved through taking steps to improve the
Group's liquidity and financial performance including active cost-saving and
other measures to improve the Group's operating cash flows and financial

position as below:

a)  Subsequent to 3| December 2019, in January 2020, the Group has
drawn down the new term loan of HK$10 million and executed a
bank guarantee of HK$5 million under the new bank facilities. The
Group has then obtained refund of rental deposits of HK$5 million by

executing this bank guarantee (note 25).

b)  The Group has been communicating with the banks to resolve the
breach of the financial covenants in order to maintain the existing

banking loan facilities utilised (note 25);

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption (Cont d)

The Group has been actively negotiating with landlords to explore the
possibility of obtaining rental concession of the Group's restaurants.
Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the Group has already obtained

rental concession totalling HK$2.8 million;

The Group has been reducing staff cost by cutting staff headcount

and arranging the Group's staff to take no pay leave;

The Group has been cutting operating cost by reducing the operating
hours depending on the operating performance of the respective

restaurants;

The Group has decided to make temporary closure of two
restaurants in March 2020 and permanent closure of one restaurant
in April 2020. In addition, the Group has planned to suspend the
operations of one restaurant and one bar from May 2020. Details of

which was disclosed in note 39; and

Monitoring the development of COVID-19 and taking appropriate

measures when needed.

In consideration of the Group's current operation and business plan, the

directors are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial

obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption (Cont d)

In addition to the above, Ms. PY Wong, being the controlling shareholder
and director of the Company, will provide continuing financial support to the
Group and take measures to enable the Group to have sufficient working
capital to meet its liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due and
to continue to carry on its business for the next coming twelve months
after the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on a going concem basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to reduce the carrying values of the Group's assets
to their net realisable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has

not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise

indicated.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:
0 has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and

circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont d) 4. FESHBE(E)
(a)  Basis of consolidation (Contd) @ #HEEE(E)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the vyear are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant

subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(@)

Basis of consolidation (Cont d)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries including re-attribution of relevant
reserves between the Group and the non-controlling interest according
to the Group's and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets, and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities of the subsidiaries (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Merger accounting for business combination involving businesses under

common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
items of the combining businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the

combining businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are combined using the
existing book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the time of

common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the combining businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the combining businesses first
came under the common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless

of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are
presented as if the business had been combined at the end of the previous
reporting period or when they first came under common control, whichever

is shorter.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(©

Investment in an associate (Cont d)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of an associate used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations

or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from

the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(c)  Investment in an associate (Cont d)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent

that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)  Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that

are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

0 the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment

for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont d) 4. FESHBE(E)
(d)  Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d) d) REEFEHNZBA(E)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group's revenue from catering, restaurant consultancy and other

services are recognised over time as such services are rendered.

Revenue from membership services and sponsorship from promotion
services are recognised on a time-based method over the subscription

period/sponsorship period respectively.

License fee income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreement. License fee income is determined by

reference to the gross revenue generated by licensee under the agreement.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements MEMEEE
Furniture and fixtures BRREERE
Equipment and tools RERTA
Computers B

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(

Impairment on tangible assets (Cont d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

|loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all costs

necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 5. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets

or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees or points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

to collect contractual cash flows; and

0 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

0 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss, except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which

HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont d) 4. FESHBE(E)
(h)  Financial instruments (Cont @) (hy S£BMIAE)
Financial assets (Contd) EHEE (&)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, amounts due from a controlling shareholder, amounts due from an
associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
[2-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within |2 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current

conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on

these assets are assessed individually for all debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)  Financial instruments (Cont d)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

5 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating

results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Cont d)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (Contd)

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount

becomes past due.

Definition of default

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to

demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)  Financial instruments (Cont d)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(v)

\

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition

event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the

respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)  Financial instruments (Cont d)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the

effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income s calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case

interest income s calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment is recognised

through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)  Financial instruments (Cont d)
Financial assets (Contd)
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to

the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the financial asset's carrying amount and the sum of

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity

instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial liabilities and equity (Contd)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
accrued charges, amounts due to related companies and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans (including
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")) are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

U]

in

Retirement benefits costs (Cont d)

Short-term employee benefits (Cont d)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already

paid.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from | January 2019)

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and |ease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.

(i) Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(i)  Leasing (accounting policies applied from | January 2019) (Contd)

()

Right-of-use asset (Cont d)

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant and equipment to
which the Group applies the revaluation model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are held
for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value. The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings which is held for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried
at fair value. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the Group also
has leased a number of properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises it judgement and determines that it is a separate
class of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which is
held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset arising from the

properties under tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(i)  Leasing (accounting policies applied from | January 2019) (Contd)

(i)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group's

incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the

lease.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A

4. EESHBXR(E)
() HE(E2019F 18I BREAN
B BER) ()

(i)

HERE

HERBERNEERBKA
MANZHENR 2B E
R - HENFRBEER
BME (%A R E5HE
EIRRR o M R EAE
SEBE  AEERALE
B ZEEERNE -

TR E A5 IR
HMERBABRINZEE
BEGAEMENRER
ERENR : ()EE TR
FMEKAEEES : ()9
SRR A E 2 B8
FEFELAEHEENK
(EREURRIE A X) ;
(i) A BAARBERABEE
RIBEIES T 25HE : (iv)
WEBAREREITEE
BiEEE ZEERZT
{18 R (v) fin 78 B I B % R
ATEEEREZILEE -
BILTRE 2 SR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

in

(i2)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from | January 2019) (Contd)

(i) Lease liability (Contd)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g, a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a

change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 3|1 December 2018)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. Al

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term. In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are

recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘loss before taxation” because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(k)

()

Taxation (Cont d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.
Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs, other than those directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of

those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and
measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where
the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to

be received from the contract.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
4, management of the Group is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the

next financial year.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and depreciation
method in determining the related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the management's experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions and
will take into account the lease term (including any renewal option) of the Group's
restaurants. Management of the Group will accelerate the depreciation charge
where the economic useful lives are shorter than previously estimated due to
removal or closure of restaurants. The management of the Group will also write-off
or write-down the carrying value of the items which are technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned. Actual economic useful lives may

differ from estimated economic useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VB BRKE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Estimation of impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use

assets

Assessing impairment of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
requires an estimation of its recoverable amounts which is the higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal. If there is any indication that the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets allocated to each individual restaurant
cash generating unit (“CGU") may be impaired, such as restaurants operated
with operating loss, recoverable amount shall be estimated for such restaurant
CGU. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the CGUs of each individual restaurant and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value to those
cash flows. When fair value less costs of disposal calculations are undertaken, the
fair value was estimated using relevant valuation technique and make reference to
recent market comparative for similar assets adjusted for difference in condition in

order to determine the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Going concern

Management makes an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern when preparing the consolidated financial statements. As disclosed in
note 3(b), the validity of the going concern assumptions depends upon the series
of measures and the continuing financial support from Ms. PY Wong, who is the

controlling shareholder owner and director of the Company.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the value of assets to their net
realisable amounts, to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively and to provide for any further

liabilities which might arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6.

Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable from restaurant
operations including income from catering services (net of discount), restaurant
related sponsorship income from third party suppliers for promotion of their
products in the Group's restaurants and membership fee income from external
customers for privileged services in the Group's restaurants. The Group's revenue

from external customers based on their nature are detailed below:

WA R TBER
LN

BAREREENE RN EKFR (2
REKRBYA FIBRHM) - REE=
THERARASBERRERTERT
REZRAENENRARRBINEE
FRASEEEEXHRRENEER
A) o REBEREPEENRBINR

ERMWAFRAT :

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET

Revenue recognised over time AL PN

Catering services BHR

— European restaurants —BUNEEE 84,798 101,030
— Asian restaurants — MNEEE 132,940 127,984
217,738 229014
Sponsorship income EEA 800 800
Membership fee income 2EWA 527 442
219,065 230,256
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Contd)

Segmental information

The Group applies the practical expedient of HKFRS |5 which allows the Group
not to disclose the information of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contract with customers, as the original expected
duration of the performance obligation arising from the catering services and

membership services in relation to the restaurant operation are all within one year.

The Group's revenue is solely derived from the operation and management of
restaurants in Hong Kong. For the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the chief operating decision maker (being the executive directors of
the Company) reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group as
a whole, which are prepared based on same accounting policies set out in note
4. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment and no further

analysis of this single segment is presented.

Geographical information

The Group's operation are located in Hong Kong during the years ended 3|
December 2019 and 2018.

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and financial assets) of
approximately HK$65,920,000 (2018: HK$19,370,000) are located in Hong Kong
based on the geographical location of assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue from individual external customer contributes over 10% of total

revenue of the Group for both years.
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HZE2019FKR20I18F 12431 BIESF
B REERZEMNES

REEEMEHEMNES D NRE
BRERBEE (TREECHEELE
RERERE)#565920,000% 7T (2018
£ :19,370,0007&7T) °

FREFEH

o 1B FE AR 4 2R 8 B IR R B U A
ERFAREBUWALEEH 0%IA L o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

7. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 7.

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

Ms. PY Wong and Ms. Wan Suet Yee, Cherry were appointed as directors
of the Company on 2| August 2015 and redesignated as executive directors
on 18 May 2017, and Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam, Mr. Leung Yuk
Lun, Ulric and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong, Tony were appointed as independent
non-executive directors of the Company on 23 January 2018. Ms PY Wong

is the chief executive officer of the Company.

Director's emoluments for their services in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Group were as follow:

For the year ended 3| December 2019

Executive Directors

(@)

ExKEEME

EERIETHAEMSE

aflEZ T RS ELLRN2015
F8HLIAEZAIRARAE
EWR2017F5RI18EAER
#MITEE * HDevin Nijanthan
Chanmugam7t 4 ~ REBEAE R
Wee Keng Hiong, TonysC4#22018
FIABEEZRERARRBL
FRITES - EMER LT RER
ATH AR, °

EXNNSEEARESHARA
REHMEIT

EZE2019F 12531 H1FEE

Independent non-executive Directors

HTES BIFHTES
Wan Devin Leung Wee
Wong Suet Yee, Nijanthan Yuk Lun,  Keng Hiong,
Pui Yain Cherry ~ Chanmugam Ulric Tony Total
S BEE RIM @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THR ThR TER THR
Fees ik
Other emoluments; Hio@e - = = 150 150 150 450
Salaries and other benefitsand & REMEFR
allowance 2H 859 808 — — — 1,667
Retirement benefit scheme BB BN
contrbutions 18 18 = = = 36
Discretionary bonus (note) S TEAL (FsE) 57 97 = = = 154
934 93 150 150 150 2,307
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 7. EEREEME (E)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd) @) ESERFETHAEME(Z)
For the year ended 31 December 20/8 BIZ2018%F 12831 HILEE
Executive Directors Independent non-executive Directors
HITEZ BiHITES
Wan Devin Leung Wee
Wong Suet Yee, Nijanthan YukLun,  Keng Hiong,
Pui Yain Chery  Chanmugam Ulric Tony Total
& BEE RIB 5t

HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$0O0  HK$OOO  HK$O00
T T T T T e

Fees 5 — — 134 134 134 402
Other emoluments: Hfte -
Salaries and other benefitsand ~ Hr & REMER R
alowance AR 834 780 — = — 1,614
Retirement benefit scheme RERIE BN
contributions 18 18 — — — 36
Discretionary bonus (note) BoETEAL (Bife) 58 194 — — = 252
910 992 134 134 134 2304
Note: The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis with reference to the Bifet : ZIEAL R EZ[ARREBNE
individual's performance. ERETE o
No remuneration was paid by the Group to the Directors of the Company AEEMEFESRRAARRE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for X RMEMFB - 1EARSIE
loss of office during both years. None of the Directors of the Company has AREBHMARE B R 28
waived any remuneration for both years. HERBERBAE - XATESH

ENZMEF R TAH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 7.

(b)  Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year included
two Directors of the Company (2018: two Director) whose emolument is
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining

three (2018: three) individuals are set out below:

ExkEEME (E)

(b)

EEME

FR - AEEREERTHAL
BREARBMEBESE (20184 :
MEESE) &R EXHHF
Bt o HeR=% (20185 : =%)
{EARBNS ST -

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT FHT

Salaries and other benefits and allowance e R EMBH K= 1,988 2,133
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFFTEIH R 42 49
Discretionary bonus (note) BOBFEAL (Bt aE) 60 152
2,090 2,334

Note: The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis with reference to the

individual's performance.

The number of the highest paid individuals who are not Directors of the

M - RIEARL2EEARREREE

TIMEBENFERARFEER

Company have their remuneration falling within the following bands: ESEMATEE AT -
2019 2018
Number of Number of
employee employee
BEHE EE2A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T % 1,000,000/ 7T 3 3

During the years ended 3| December 2019 and 2018, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the three (2018: three) highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the three (2018: three) highest paid individuals waived any

emoluments for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

OTHER INCOME 8. HfttrA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Interests income RN 97 310
Credit card commission rebate (RN iR — 22
Consignment income of wines and cigars BEEREMTERA 60 69
Event service income EBRESBA 757 796
Restaurant consultancy service income %EEEEFEJHE%HQJ\ 1,265 3,134
Forfeited credits from members 2EENLK — 73
License fee income FABKA 114 282
Compensation from insurance claim Rz RER(E 24 2018
Others Hit 444 282
2,761 6,986

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HttERER

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Net exchange gain BEE K e R 14 24
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment B « BE &KX ENEE (70) (53)
Provision of reinstatement provision SHEEERYE — 224
(56) 195

FINANCE COSTS 10. BERAE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note |6) MEEEMNERAZ (HE16) 2,437 —
Interest on bank borrowings RATHE AR 307 490
2,744 490
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

I1. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 1. BRHAEE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after BB RTEIEE HIRR T2 %18

charging:

Auditor’s remuneration ZEEnET B 713 1,250
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W - BB RSETE (HEE15)

(note 15) 10,714 12791
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note |6) EREEENE (aE16) 25,995 —
Directors' remuneration (note 7) BEH (FaE7) 2,307 2,304
Other staff costs: Hih & TR

Salaries and other benefits & REAEN 86,670 86,213

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RENETEIHR 3,640 3,758
Total staff costs BT 92,617 92,275
Impairment loss on rental deposits (included in MeRetRERBE GTARMD

other operating expenses) RERR) — 201
Provision for onerous contract (included in BREAKEE GE AR

other operating expenses) RERx) — 599
Lease payments under operating leases in respect  RIBFQEHER i &

of land and buildings: BFENEENT

— Short-term lease expenses (note |6) —RHMEERX 945 945

— Low-value leases payments (note |6) —REEHEENK 12 12

— Variable lease payment (note |6) — A EHEENK 9,625 l,640

— Minimum lease payments —REBEENK — 28,885

10,582 31482
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of taxation charged to profit and loss represent:

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

Frgwip
AT ABZRBIR GBS -

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BENEH -

Current tax BIEIRIR 107 1,152
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERETRE(BEEE) 4 (185)
11 967

Deferred tax (note 28) R (Firt28)
Current year REE 149 214)
260 753

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be

taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable

profits above HK$2 million (2018: same).

R2018F38218 BB EASBH
2017F % (BRT) (B75) GRHIER
(TEZR]) - B3| AR FGH X4
B o ZERMN20I18F3IAAREK A
FERARBATEER - REMARHIFI
AUEHE  cEBEEERNE2A
EBATHEAE A %M B R - M
iR BE BT A A 16.5%H) B K
BB TREMEHMRH 2 BBEE
B R FGBER 6 S%MGE—TiR
B

Eit - B2AEB T hEH R R A
#825%THBEMNEH - MBEET
W b2 AT FERTUE M AR 1 6.5%51 B
EEMEH (20185 : MRA)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

2.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont d) 12. FRSBBX (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation AEERMEHRX A EREBRRE
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income i 2 T o 25 % P 51 BR 256 A S 48 2 AR 40
as follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Loss before taxation BREATE R 31,697 (15,673)
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 165%) IZFTSRIBIR 16.5%(2018%F : 16.5%)
SENHE (5,230) (2,586)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax PAMB R RS2
purpose 1,721 1,197
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  BEARMUA N TR R 2 (16) (97)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised T RERANEBRNHETE 3,638 1,823
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences A MR RRE) AT B R E FE A
not recognised HTE 221 388
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERETR/(BERE 4 (185)
Income tax at concessionary rate REEVEAERMEH (78) (165)
Decrease in opening deferred tax assets resutting @A E NP EEFEIELTRIE
from a decrease in applicable tax rate BEERD — 378
Income tax expense for the year FRAEHAX 260 753

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 28.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDEND 3.

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

The Directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2019.

LOSS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of

the Company is based on the following data:

mE M EHRRHE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

RE

BHE2019FK2018E 12831 AIEE
B ARR T ERNHE RIS

RNRAREZNEZTLEZE2019F 12 A31
B IEF R RIS o

BRER

ARAER AREERER R EEER
TSR T BUBET &

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss RUGtESREARBEER
per share HEE
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the RRAREE ANEIEFEEE
Company (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 31,957 15,435
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ FILAGTESREAR R#BEEM
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share TR e 192
(000)(note) (FR%) (BizE) 860,000 842,463

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share for the years ended 3| December 2018 was calculated based
on the assumption that the Group Reorganisation and the capitalisation issue of the

Company's shares (as detailed in note 27(c)) had been completed on | January 2018.

Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share for both years as there was

no potential ordinary share outstanding.

KI5 : #220185F 12 A3 BILEE - AMET
HEREAREEEBN LRI MNE
FHHHERBREESHERA AR
R E AL BT (GHEBRRTEE27()
BER20I8F | B I BFEMKAE -

AR B D HITR B - %W

BFEENSREIFRERERENESE
S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% BRERRE
Leasehold Furniture Equipment
improvements  and fixtures and tools Computers Total
HENERE GARETRE RERIA Bl st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR THER THER TR
COosT A
At | January 2018 R20I8%FI A1 H 5332 11415 20502 2224 87,463
Additions RE 2300 1,724 3015 659 7698
Disposals/written-off & /s — (4%9) (1363) (139) (1961
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 1N A3IA 55,622 12,680 2,154 2,744 93,200
Redlassified as ROU assets BN BEAGARE
BE (1558) — — — (1558)
At | January 2019, as restated 201951 AIR >
KES| 54,064 12,680 22,154 2,744 91,642
Additions wE 14,037 3727 6,466 634 24,864
Disposals/written-off HE /HisH — (290) 47) (62) (399)
At 3| December 2019 2019128318 68,101 16,117 28573 3316 16,107
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT ~ {TERFI{E
At | January 2018 #2018 A1 H 31676 805! 14778 1,796 56,301
Provided for the year FRERE 7598 1,638 3246 309 12791
Eliminated on disposalshwritten-off RE /HssrsEH — (205) (749) (104) (1058)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss ~ FAME & NERFERE
(note 17) (MzE17) 5796 = = = 579
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A318 45070 9,484 17,275 2001 73830
Reclassified as ROU assets B DEAGAE
BE (LI — — — (LI
At | January 2019, as restated M2019F 1 AIR -
L] 43959 9,484 17,275 2,001 7,719
Provided for the year FRRE 5484 [,422 3412 396 10,714
Eliminated on disposals/written-off ALE/MEE R — (257) (10) (41) (308)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss A& AR REEE
(note 17) (Bt&E17) 1,454 — — = 1,454
At 3| December 2019 2019128318 50,897 10,649 20,677 2,356 84,579
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 128318 17,204 5,468 7,89% 960 31,528
At 3| December 2018 A2018F12A31R 10,552 3,19 4879 43 19,370
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

ERREEREERE
EREEE

RIARAEERRIEI D EREEENR

is as follows: HFEDTWT
Buildings
BgF
HK$’000
FERT
Cost BX AR
As at | January 2019 initial recognition upon HNE BB RELERE 65:i&
adoption of HKFRS 16 K019 | A I B #ER 54,614
Additions NE [1,198
Lease modification MEER] (1,446)
At 3| December 2019 20195128318 64,366
Accumulated depreciation and impairment KT ERAE
As at | January 2019 initial recognition upon RAEBMEREERE 651R
adoption of HKFRS 16 R2019%F 1 A | BHFHER -
Depreciation provided for the year FRFHRITE 25,995
Impairment for the year (note 17) FRRIE (H5E17) 3,979
At 31 December 2019 R20195 12431 B 29,974
Net Book Value RRERE
At 31 December 2019 R20195 12431 B 34,392
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY (Contd) 6.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group adopted HKFRS |6 using the modified retrospective method of
adoption with the date of initial application of | January 2019. Under this method,
the comparative information for 2018 was not restated and continues to be

reported under HKAS |7.

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdiction from which it operates.
The values in the table below reflect the current proportions of lease payments

that are either fixed or variable.

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as:

ERREERBERE (A)
HESE

AEBRAKETBRERAE B
WMEENE 165 BRERAHA019
FIAIB - BEZAZE  2018FHLLR
BHARTES - WHEERESESS
BRIE 7R T AR -

AEERELEEr ZERHEESR
W - TREERKREEXATEBEN
TREENERES D o

ARMEEMKORESTOT :
2019

HK$'000
TER

Current liabilities REAE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE

27,369
14,383

41,752
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

l6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY (Contd) l6. EAREERMEEAE(E)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont'd) HEGE(E)
Future lease payments are due as follows: AEBENTEBERMAT
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interests value
BERENN [N BE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FET TER

3| December 2019 20195128318
Not later than one year —FR 28,811 (1,442) 27,369
Later than one year and not later than two years —%E{&1BERER 11,819 (446) 11,373
Later than two years and not later than five years MF&IERFA 3,076 (66) 3,010
43,706 (1,954) 41,752
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interests value
RIEHEERK S RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
3| December 2018 and | January 2019 2018512831 A% 20191 A1 H
Not later than one year —FR 27434 (2,269) 25,165
Later than one year and not later than two years —F{&{EMERA 24,879 (997) 23,882
Later than two years and not later than five years FFRIERFNR 8219 (195) 8,024

60,532 3461) 57,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

6.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY (Contd) l6. EAREERMEEAE(E)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont'd) HEGE(E)
The following are the amounts recognized in profit or loss: RERERHSEMAT
2019
HK$'000
TER
Low value lease expense EEEEERS 12
Short term lease expense RHAER 945
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets EREEENERX 25,995
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MERBHNERAX 2,437
Variable lease payment ATEMAERNRK 9,625
Total amount recognized in profit or loss RESRZNERE 39,014




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

The management of the Group concluded there was indication of impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of certain property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets associated to the restaurants with
carrying amounts (before impairment) of HK$16,906,000 and HK$21,592,000,
respectively. The recoverable amount of the relevant restaurants are estimated

individually.

The recoverable amount of CGU has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the management of the Group covering the remaining lease term with
a pre-tax discount rate is 14.51% (2018: 15.50%). The annual growth rate used
is -2.8% to 0% (2018: -2% to 0%) as at 3| December 2019. The assumptions of
annual revenue growth rates are determined based on expectation for the market
development and is not expected to exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the catering industry in Hong Kong. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculated is the budgeted gross profit and operating expenses, which is determined
based recent performance of the relevant restaurants. The management of the
Group believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the

property, plant and equipment of the restaurants.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the Group determined
that the recoverable amount of the CGU is lower than the carrying amount. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets such that they carrying amount of each category
of asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its
value in use and zero. Based on the value in use calculation and the allocation, an
impairment of HK$1,454,000 (2018: HK$5,796,000) (note 15) and HK$3,979,000
(2018: nil) (note 16) has been recognized against the carrying amount of property,

plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

BB FF A

AEEERERATEREFRLHE

T - BE REEREZERENE
FEEERNNE & BETRENE -

AREE (REHR{E) 7 Bl & 16,906,000
T 21,592,000 7T - BB ER AL
(6] & B8 o iR R B Al 5t o

ReEEEMRKRESENREFER
BEGEET - ZSHERBEREE
ERERECMBRE  ERREF
HREEHRBRNR e REBAET
RIELIR R /5 14.51%(20184F © 15.50%) °
R219F 128318 FTAFEEEER
B-28%F0%(20184F  2%ZE0%) ° FU
B RENRRDRET SERBHE
E BRI EBRAEAERENTHR
HlER% - FREEMAENS —FER
RABEENREERS - NREEH
ZEENIORREE - XEEERER
5 EMZERSEEERNEEIEE
BT EEHRRERHERYE - K
B REENFAIREISHE o

BETGER  AEEEREETR S
EEBAAKE S BENKEE &
BLBEAEENE  BERZESE
RIkERESE - Bt - SERIEEN
REERERER A AT EREEK
A HEABERZ=EFNERE-
BEFREENERSE W -
BERSEARGERAEESENETE

2 R R E 1,454,000/ 7T (2018 4F :
5,796,000/ 70 ) (Pif3E 15) %.3,979,0005%
TC(2018%F : F) (Mizk16)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE 18. MREEATMRE, MELATE
=
Details of the Group's investment in an associate are as follows: AEERBEARMREFBNT

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TAET

Cost of investment in an associate, unlisted (note) MBS A BIMIREKA » FE LT (FI5E) = =

Loan to an associate BEld=VNC-EA 6,900 6900

Less: share of post-acquisition losses that are B EIE W ER EE

in excess of the cost of investment (BHIREKAK) (6,900) (6,900)

Note: The Group subscribed 30% interest in the associate at subscription price of HK$30 BiET - NEER 20165 | A 13 BERBEE30
on 13 January 2016, B ITLRE LIS 1 F)30%E) R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (Contd) 8.

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

RBFERRMIRE EBE QA RE

R(E)

Issued and fully Proportion of equity interests Proportion of voting
Place of Principal place  paid share held by the Group a power held by the
Name of entity incorporation of operation capital s at 3| December Group Principal activities
BEEH SMEEE  TEEXBE  CROREERE BENANBLAKEERLS FEEMERERELS TEXK
2019 2018
Potato Head Hong Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 30% 30% 30% (note a) Investment holding
Kong Limited (note b)
(“Potato Head (HK)")
Potato Head Hong e B 1003 T 30% 30% 30%(ffizEa) REER (Miztb)
Kong Limited
([Potato Head (HK) )

Notes: Bzt :

(@)  Pursuant to the shareholders agreement entered into by the Group and the other (@) REAKEHPotato Head (HK) (A&
shareholder of Potato Head (HK), an independent third party to the Group, the BB LE=7)EMRRA ZHARE
Group has the right to appoint one out of the three directors of Potato Head (HK). & » AEBB#EZ EPotato Head
Accordingly, the Group is able to exercise significant influence over Potato Head (HK). (HO=REEPH—% - At - &%

[ 7] ¥fPotato Head (HK) I TFEAFE
e
(b)  Potato Head (HK), through its subsidiary, operates a mixed-use entertainment venue (b)

which comprises retail shop, cafe, bar and restaurant.

Potato Head (HK)#B i@ E M B A 74
LA ARRLEH - BETE
5 YRR R R EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS  19. ESRHEMEKRRE RERAF
I

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET THET

Trade receivables from restaurant operation REEBKENE HRKFE 2,804 3,693

Rental deposits ki n 18,201 10,485

Other deposits Hige 3,956 4,626

Other receivables Hi IR 3,551 4,630

Prepayments and others TR RIE R E A 1,900 1,690
Total trade and other receivables, deposits and o REMEWTIE - Be K

prepayments ANFIEERE 30,412 25,124

Analysed as: SR

Current BER 16,490 13,250

Non-current JERNER 13,922 1,874

30,412 25,124

As at 31 December 2019, net amount of trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$2,804,000 (2018: HK$3,693,000).

Usually, there is no credit period for the restaurant operation except for certain

customers in which credit period ranging from 4 to 30 days is granted by the

Group. The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly by cash or credit

card settlement. The settlement terms with credit card companies are usually within

7 days after the billing date which is also the service rendered date.
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R2019F 128318 BRBIIHESE
02 5 eI IE 58 52,804,0008 70
(20184 :3,693,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 9. EZREMEWRIE - REKES

(Contd) A (1)
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables from restaurant operations AT RRERE R RES B8 (BRRH
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated the service rendered R BEEE) 2 REEERLLH
date, at the end of the reporting period. B RN IBRRE DT ©
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 2,502 2,094
31 to 60 days 31E60H 101 766
6! to 90 days 61 £90H 7 200
Over 90 days #3890 8 194 633
2,804 3,693
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to credit card BRAE AR R R HA I M4 R iR 8k Y
companies and diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of ZtEPHE 5 RIKFIER BB LT
default. ERE
As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are R2019F12A31 B - RRE A A
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$302,000 (2018: HK$,599,000) Hj - BRE48FE/8302,0007 7T (2018%F -
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, 1,599,000/ ) W BB EAAREEH
HK$ 194,000 (2018: HK$633,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is EHRIRBLERAN - REBREH
not considered as in default as the amounts are either from counter-parties with F - 194,000 7T (20184 : 633,000/
good history of repayment or subsequently settled. The Group does not hold any TO)EBHIORKIA LB IR BEL -
collateral over these balances. AFIERBARIFERCHENRZEA

A BERAES - AEBEN AL FERT
ﬁfﬂﬂﬁﬁuu °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 9.

(Contd)
During the year ended 31 December 2019, loss allowance for trade and other

receivables has been recorded as the Group considers the default risk of that

amount is high and the recoverability of such is uncertain.

The table below reconciles the loss allowance for trade and other receivables for

BESRHEHMERRE - ZERAEM
FIE (18)
BHE019F12A3IBLEFE BEHES
KE AU L EREE - REA
ARERREHEREZENRRERS
BRBERERMFRIB L AIKERE -

TRAFAE S REMEKFUE BB

the year: Btz B8R
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx FAET
At | January RIAIR — —
Loss allowance for the year FANEEEE 1,070 —
Less: written-off s (1,070) =
At 31 December RI2H31 8 — —

Details of impairment assessment policy of trade and other receivables and deposits

as at 3|1 December 2019 are set out in note 34.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A

R2019F 12 A3 BWE 5 R E MUK
TBUA N5 & BB E R BUR 51 S pA B
i34 e



20.

21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 20. RITHEHRREAE CEARITER
As at 31 December 2019, pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to a R2019F 12431 B EEMEITHERK
bank to secure the bank borrowings of the Group (as set out in note 25), which ERIUSAEBRITENRMER TR
carry fixed interest rate ranged from 1.63% to |.68% per annum as at 3| December TR (BRHIEE25) » 20194 12
2019 (2018: fixed interest rate ranged from 1.09% to |.57% per annum). A3 BIREE FHE1.63%E 1.68%5T &
(2018%F « IREEFMEI.09%E1.57%
AR e
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held and short term bank deposits with an RITHER NI BER2019F 12H31 8
original maturity of three months or less and carry interest at prevailing market rate e RRIBMAR=EAZIAT -
at 0.001% (2018: 0.01%) per annum at 3| December 2019. VIR TS EFZE0.001%(2018%F :
001%)at B HIRITFRK -
Details of impairment assessment policy for the year ended 31 December 2019 are BZE20196 12 H31 A IEFERRERTS
set out in note 34. BB P34
INVENTORIES 21 FE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FET
Food, beverages and other consumables B~ Ron KE B 5,857 4,825
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/ 2. Bl EAEBAR —RERR

A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/AN ASSOCIATE

Amounts due from related companies and a controlling shareholder

The amounts are unsecured and interest-free. Other than those trade nature
balances as disclosed below, the remaining balances have no fixed repayment term.
In the opinion of Directors of the Company, the amounts are expected to be

recovered within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2019, the amount due from a controlling shareholder of
HK$98,000 (2018: HK$58,000) is trade nature with credit term of 60 days from
the date of invoices and aged within 60 days based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period. The maximum amount outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2019 is HK$98,000 (2018: HK$4,100,000).

R/ —EBEDRRE
EREHARR -4 2RRRNE

ZERRRBEERARRE o B IR
BOESHERE  RRELEETE
S ARBEZRS - ZFHAERY
RN & PRE+ —EARKE -

M2019%F 12831 B » W —Z AR
RA)FRIEA98,00078 7T (20184F : 58,000
B ZNEBESME  FEHA
BEZAMBOXRAREAORA (R
15 et B AR 3 220 B T Jee B 22019
FRANBLEFENZERREESER
98,0007 (20184 4,100,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/A 22.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/AN ASSOCIATE (Cont d)

Amount due from an associate

The amount is non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed
repayment term. The Directors of the Company expected that such balances will
be recovered within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

Amounts due to related companies

Details of the amounts due to related companies are as follows:

Y EREBAR, —BERR
i/—%‘i%‘%‘-’&ﬂ%ﬁtlﬁ (%)
FEl — R D )

ZRREFESILE  BEAR 28N
EETETHR - AAREFRHEZF
RBHBNRE AL 12EARKE -
BB ARE

FE{ BARS X B SEME IR T

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Trade nature (note a): BH5M1ME (Mista)
Cigarro Limited (“Cigarro”) Cigarro Limited([ Cigarro ) I 4
I 4
Non-trade nature (note b): FESHME (Hizb) :
Golders Way Company Limited (“Golders Way") ~ Golders Way Company Limited
([ Golders Way ) 225 90
225 90
226 94
Notes FisE

©) Balances with Cigarro, which is controlled by Ms. PY Wong, are trade nature, with a
credit period from purchase of goods of 30 days. These trading balances with related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and aged within 30 days based on the invoice

date at the end of the reporting period.

(b)  Balance with Golders Way, which is 50% owned by Ms. PY Wong, is non-trade

nature, with a credit period of 30 days.

152 JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A

(@) HECigarro(BEME T2 H]) K 48R
BESME  FEHAEERMIE30
Ao RIFEER - ZFHRBHAAN
B oS AERR R BRIREER
HIR)BRER R30H A ©
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES

Trade and other payables and accrued charges

BESRHEMENREARETEA
BH REMENRIALETER

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT TET

Trade payables BHREMNIE 15,721 11,744
Other payables: Hi e 5IA

Accrued staff related costs JE5T B TARRIRCAR 3,227 2,657

Other payables and other accrued charges Hip B R E b EAE A 20,205 5,254

39,153 19,655

The credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The following is an ageing

analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

i

&

BEEmMEEHAR30R - RFEH
R BREZAM2I0E FRNRIAR

reporting period: EOIIAT
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
0-30 days 0Z230H 6,585 10,020
31-60 days 31E60H 5,423 1,426
61-90 days 61Z290H 2,924 125
Over 90 days #aiB90 B 789 173
15,721 [1,744
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24. AREE

Contract liabilities

BRERE

3| December 31 December
12A31H 12H318
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Restaurant Operation ZERE

Deposits received for catering services at RREBREERREEHME RS
restaurants 1,570 853
Prepaid membership fee BNEEE 191 402
1,761 1,255

During the year ended 3| December 2019, the carried-forward contract
liabilities as at 31 December 2018 in relation to the Group's catering services and

membership fee income are fully recognised as revenue.

The Group's typical payment terms which impact the amount of contract liabilities

HZE2019F 12831 BILFE @ siAEE

MERRGERERE

WATE 12018

FNRANBNELESHEEEHER

RA o

AEBYECHASHABESRNAT

recognised are as follows: FFRIESRAT
Deposits received for catering services at restaurants EEEMRBEENERS

The Group normally receives approximately 50% deposits in advance from
customers for catering services in relation to events to be organised at the Group's
restaurants. The Group also receives deposits in advance from members of a
restaurant of the Group and the members will in return be granted equivalent
cash value food and beverage credits for the catering services at that restaurant
during the subscription period, which is normally within one year from the annual
membership card issued to the member. All of these deposits and credits are

non-transferable and non-refundable.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A

RASEEBERNNEDME - A5E
BETRLME P U EE R IRISKI50%H)
Be - AEENTELKIAEE-HE
ENg8ke  MERBR Z%e8
BRRENRECSZERESRESE
BeMERED  RBH-—RABEE
EREEFREH—FR - ZERER
BAH T AIERATARK



24.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd)

Prepaid membership fee

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24.

The Group receives annual membership fees in full amount at the beginning of

the annual subscription period. Prepaid membership fee will be recognised on a

time-based method over the subscription period which will normally be one year.

The prepaid membership fees are non-transferable and non-refundable.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

BREREE)

ANEEE
AEERFERBHRIUBREEEE
B o

\

8BF

=4 %E1¢E/\/\HTE/\WL\E%%W<@$;%

—F)AERERN SR - BAg
BN

BETAEEE AR -

Movements in contract liabilities BRABNED
HK$'000
TER
Balance as at | January 2018 R20185 | A | HEYAEER 1,357
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognizing revenue ~ FRERMABEH AL BERD
during the year (1,357)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receipts in advance SR B SR B BRI B
of catering service provided BRI EEM 1,255
Balance as at 3| December 2018 F20185 12431 BRV & ER 1,255
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognizing revenue ~ FRERWMABH S L A ERD
during the year (1,255)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receipts in advance of  FhiEft & &RARTSUERTE UG IR E 5L
catering service provided BREEEM 1,761
Balance as at 3| December 2019 20195 12 831 BW& & 1,761
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS 25, RITRERK
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Secured bank borrowings BERRTEN 3,902 8,445
Carrying amounts repayable of the bank FEEERTERREE:
borrowings*:
Within one year —FR 2,668 4,543
More than one year, but not exceeding two years ~ —4FJA_E{E N ERBRE 1,234 2,668
More than two years, but not more than five years A EETNBBAF = 1,234
3,902 8,445
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under — J& : JRBI B E FAT5I—F A
current liabilities 3| HiR IR (3,902) (4,543)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities JERENE B TATFIROE — 3902
& The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan e AHFEDERER IR TEER
agreement. HEH -

As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings are subject to variable interest
rate, of the higher of 2.50% per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") or the banks cost of funds. As at December 2019, the bank borrowings
are subject to variable interest rate of the higher of 2.50% per annum over HIBOR
or the bank’s cost of funds and 2.50% per annum below Prime Rate or the bank's
cost of funds. The weighted average interest rate is 4.62% per annum as at 3|
December 2019 (2018: 3.52% per annum).

During year ended 3| December 2018, the Group has voluntarily early repaid bank
borrowing of approximately HK$4,063,000.
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R2019F 128318 + RITERDIRE
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)

As at 3| December 2019, the bank borrowings of the Group are secured by
bank deposits of HK$4,500,000 (2018: HK$4,500,000). The bank borrowings of
the Group are guaranteed by corporate guarantees for unlimited amount by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company as at 3|1 December 2019 and
2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group obtained the bank guarantee HK$4,000,000
for its rental deposit (2018: Nil).

In respect of the Group's bank borrowings in an aggregate amount of HK$3,902,000
as at 31 December 2019, the Group is required to comply with, among others,
the covenant that restricts the Group to maintain certain financial ratio (the “Loan
Covenant™). If the Group fails to perform or comply with such covenant, the lender
may declare the outstanding principal amount, accrued interest and all other sums
payable under the loan immediately due and payable. The Directors became
aware that the Group has technically breached the Loan Covenant as the Group
has failed to fulfill certain financial criteria in which the calculation is based on the
Group's financial information set out in these financial statements. Out of the
outstanding loan as of 31 December 2019 of HK$3,902,000, HK$1,234,000 was
reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities in this respect.

Subsequent to 3| December 2019, in January 2020, the Group has drawn down
the 5-year term loan of HK$10 million and executed a bank guarantee of HK$5
million under the new bank facilities (the “New Facilities”) granted to a subsidiary
of the Company. The New Facilities are secured by the Group's bank deposits
of HK$5,000,000 and supported by a corporate guarantee of HK$ 15,000,000
executed by the Company. The related agreements of the New Facilities contain a
clause that provides the lender with an unconditional right to demand repayment at
any time at its own discretion. In addition, the Group is required to comply with,
among others, the covenant that restricts the Group to maintain certain financial
ratio (the "New Loan Covenant”). The Directors became aware that the Group
has technically breached the New Loan Covenant as the Group has failed to fulfil
certain financial criteria in which the calculation is based on the Group's financial
information set out in these financial statements.

The Group has been communicating with the banks to resolve the ibreach of the
aforesaid bank covenants in order to maintain the existing banking loan facilities. As
of the approval date of these financial statements, the lenders have not made any
demand for immediate loan repayment.

25.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

RITE/IR(E)

M2019% 12831 B - REBRITER
LA SR 772 204,500,000 7T (2018 4F :
4,500,000 7T ) fEH# 3 - R2019F K
20185 12 A31 B » AEERITEZTAR
NAIRARRETHBAREREAQR
FERIEER -

R2019F 128318 - "EBBERS
7 & RS R1T1E1R 4,000,000/ T (2018
F:F)e

MAEEN20195F 12 A31 BERITER
HEE39020008 T E - AEBEEST
(o) RAEEER —EHNRE
LEEOZL ([ERR2L]) - WAKER
BEBITBTHZEL - MRAKEEM
BEFETREERESRE « BFE R
BEMEMNAEINRRRALERN - TS5
BEBRAEE R RS THHERE
(ENEZENBRERASAEE N
BERTE)  AEEERENLEER
BR324 - R2019F 12 A31 BRAER
MERA3902,0008 7T tinE @ &
12340008 TRIERBREEF HEB
BREAE -

M2019F 12831 B#% - "EFBD P
200F | AREBR TARR—RHFBA
AMFRITEE (i DRRNASETE
HERIOEEBLRE —H-BES
TLRIIRITIER - BB RSB HRTT
T735£5,000,0008 T {EH AR + WA A
FER D AIFER15,000,0008 TR M 2
# o BMENBEGEEE —TEHANRK
ARBEEEREMNTT BTAERREX
BIEE o lhoN - AEEBAEST (B
FEE)RIAEELEZT —FERREL
EMRL ([FEFRY]) - EERZER
RAEBEREMEE THBZEETD
BZEVBRRMEAEENTEER
iHE)  AEBEREMTLEERMER
249 o

AEBRFBERITET AR UBAR
HRRARTERREMRR LR RT
ZANER - BEZZTHBHRRIER
B BGRARALEH AR EE E AT
BES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

26. PROVISION 26, BifE

Onerous Reinstatement
contract works Total
EEMEEHN BEIR Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THET THET THERT
At | January 2018 720185 | A H — 3,345 3,345
Addition NE 599 125 724
Reversal [ = (224 (224
At 3] December 2018 20184 12 A31 B 599 3,246 3,845
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BAEABEEMBRSENE 65 (599) — (599)
At | January 2019, as restated R2019F 1818 » KEF — 3,246 3,246
Addition wE — 606 606
At 3| December 2019 2019512831 H — 3,852 3,852

The provision for reinstatement works related to the estimated cost of reinstating
the rented premises to be carried out at the end of respective lease periods. These
amounts have not been discounted for the purpose of measuring the provision for

reinstatement works as the effect is not significant.

The provision for onerous contract represents the management's best estimate on
onerous lease contract of a restaurant as the management of the Group considers
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation under such lease contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received from the relevant lease contract.
The unexpired term of the lease is 2 years. As at 3|1 December 2019, the present
value of the anticipated irrecoverable costs on the lease contract for the period

from | January 2019 to the end of the lease term is HK$ nil (2018: HK$599,000).

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A

EEITERFESHERRETNER
HEMFENGERAER - ANTEYL
PEKX > BALEFTEEBE TG

REFH0R

ARASEERERRENBBREEE
BRI T HRBH T A # R AR A TE 8
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The detailed movements of the Company's share capital are set out below.

mE M EHRRHE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

27. KA
AR BRARBEFBEINMOT -

Number of shares Amount
g = E

HK$ HK$'000

i TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0! each FROOIETHEBR
Authorised: EE
At | January 2018 R2018F1 AIH 38,000,000 380,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital (note a) EERRAIE N (KizEa) 4,962,000,000 49,620,000 49,620
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 R2018FK2019F12A31 B 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: EBRTREBEHE
At | January 2018 R2018F1 A IR — —
Shares issued pursuant to the Share Swap R IEH HRB TR (MzEb)

Agreement (note b) 49,999 500 =
Capitalisation issue (note c) BRLEBT (FaEc) 691,500,000 6,915,000 6,915
Issue of new shares upon the share offer R B ER BT (MEd)

(note d) 168,450,000 1,684,500 1,685
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 R20I18FR2019F 12831 B 860,000,000 8,600,000 8,600

The Company was incorporated on 21 August 2015 in the Cayman Islands with an
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each. One share, credited as fully paid, was allotted and issued on 2| August 2015

to the subscriber of the Company, which was later transferred to Giant Mind on

the same date.

ARARR20I5F8A2I HERS ST
AL - JEERA 380,000/ © 5
#%38,000,000 X AR EIfB0.01 /& L) IR
%o R20I5F8A21 B » MARBRE
ABLE RET—RARINEME R
R RZRROBEE R R BEE T Giant
Mind ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

27.

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

Notes:

@

On 23 January 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$50,000,000 by the creation of an additional 4,962,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each.

As part of the Group Reorganisation and pursuant to a share swap agreement dated
23 January 2018 entered into among the Company and the then shareholders of Big
Team (the “Share Swap Agreement”), the Company acquired an aggregate of 50,000
ordinary shares in Big Team (representing the entire issued share capital of Big Team)
from all the then shareholders of Big Team, and issued and allotted an aggregate of
49,999 new shares to them as consideration, credited as fully paid, in the proportion

as nearly as may be to their respective shareholding in Big Team.

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on
23 January 2018 conditional upon the share premium account of the Company being
credited as a result of the share offer and listing of the Company's shares on the Stock
Exchange, the Directors of the Company were authorised to capitalise the amount
of HK$6,915,000 from the amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company to pay up in full at par of 691,500,000 shares for allotment
and issue to the persons whose names appeared on the register of members of the
Company at the closed of business on the same date, pro-rata to their then existing

shareholdings in the Company without involving fractions.

On 8 February 2018, the Company issued 168,450,000 shares at HK$0.30 per share

upon the share offer.

Al shares issued rank pari passu with other existing shares in all aspects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. EAEBHIE
The following is the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and movements ATRAREE R E—EFEAERNIE
thereon during the current and the prior year. EREEE (BE)REEE -

Accelerated  Accelerated

accounting tax

Tax losses  depreciation  depreciation Total
mEES  MAHE

BIAER il e #st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TR TAT

At | January 2018 20181 AI1H 347 2,646 (243) 2,750
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss P18 (F0BR),FHA

(note 12) (BffEE12) (113) 334 @) 214
At 3| December 2018 2018512431 234 2,980 (250) 2964
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss KBz (MBR), 3 A

(note 12) (B¥zE12) @ (155) 13 (149)
At 3| December 2019 R2019F 128318 227 2,825 (237) 2815
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd) 28.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position,

the following is the analysis of the deferred taxation:

EREBLR (F)
IS RIERBIANT - AL 2IERA ]
BIRR 2 -

As at 31 December

RI12A31H
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Deferred tax assets REFRIEEE 2,850 2,996
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE (35) (32)
2,815 2,964

At 3| December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$39,766,000 (2018: HK$17,754,000) available for offset against future profits.
Deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately HK$ 1,377,000
(2018: HK$1,418,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining tax loss of approximately HK$38,389,000 (2018:
HK$16,336,000) at 31 December 2019, due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2019, the Group has deductible temporary difference of
approximately HK$ 1,339,000 (2018: HK$2,350,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. WEREAR
The Group as lessee FEBEREBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future RBEBR - REBRE A HHLSE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as ME AR R FIEHE R FAERHIER
follows: NN
2018
HK$'000
TET
Within one year —FR 28436
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZELF (BHEEEMF) 33,180
61,616
The above operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for MREHENREREERERE &
restaurants, warehouses and office premises. B &#)#L MERNOHEE
Leases and rentals are negotiated and fixed for term of two to five years. Certain MO RESKERET - HHAETEAM
lease agreements entered into between the respective landlords and the Group FERF - HARFREAREITUNE
included renewal option at the discretion of the Group for further three years. The THEGZBEAEERNEE—FE
operating lease rentals for certain restaurants are determined at the higher of a H=FmEEE - RIZEMEHEERZM
fixed rental or a pre-determined percentage on revenue of respective restaurants HIET kGG ETEENEEHEER
pursuant to the terms and conditions that are set out in the respective rental EEEREEBNECHENELET
agreements. As the future revenue of these restaurants could not be reliably HMAB D (ABREERE)ERE © &
determined, the relevant contingent rent has not been included above and only the REZEEBNRRBUABEEETE
minimum lease commitment have been included in the table above. EXUREFTREBRANRE - EREF
PR ETHEALE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BBARE
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had BrézE ISRt EERPTIREEE SN
the following transactions with its related parties during the year: FRN - AEEEHEBABAETUTR
5

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAET

Catering income from Ms. PY Wong feEMELTAMEERKA 27 188

Catering income from Mr. Alan Lo feAlan Lot FTIFERRIIA 251 104

Catering income from non-controlling shareholders ~ # —fEIF{ B AIAIIEFERR AR R

of a subsidiary PG ERIA — 340
Purchases of goods from Cigarro [AICigarrofE B & i 22 21
Restaurant consultancy service income from an fE—FsE AR MEER

associate B AR TS A 1,064 660
Consultancy service fee to a non-controlling EEEYNGIESE G E AN

shareholder of subsidiaries ERREE — 441

Rental expenses to companies with 50% owned = Al L A S0%E A A AT

by Ms. PY Wong (note) MeRx (M) 900 900
Note: At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future minimum BiEE - REREEIR - AEERBESMEA L
payments under non-cancellable operating lease with a company with 50% THA 0% R AR LK T A HRAE
AR IE 4w o S (7 e ok T | A
owned by Ms. PY Wong, which fall due as follows: EHENRRREENFEENSIHIE

AT

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

T TEx

Within one year —FR 900 900

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZHF (BEEEMF) 600 1,800

1,500 2,700
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Details of the balances with related companies, a controlling shareholder,
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate at the end of the
reporting period are disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position

and note 22.

Compensation of key management personnel

The compensation to key management personnel of the Group representing

individuals appointed as directors of the Company is set out in note 7.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution,
no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$1,500

per employee per month.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising from the MPF Scheme
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represent contributions paid or payable to the funds by the Group at rates

specified in the rules of the schemes.

The contributions paid or payable to the above retirement benefits schemes by the
Group during the year ended 3| December 2019 is approximately HK$3,676,000
(2018: HK$3,794,000).

30.

31.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE
BEARS (&)
REEEAR - EEEB AR - —BERR
R B AR FEEARAR R K — B & A
AR BRER GRS MBRRR K
BFE22 ©

TEEBAENHE

AEETREBABKREZRERETLF
EEMAL - HEFSFRHET -

RIKERITTE

RiER T B DRI AE S I
fliRatt AESHEIERERHERL ° B
BertElc EERBAEXFEARS
EeNAEBZEENRRE - RIER
Eeitd  EXRHEESHRIARME
EErEVEHRAEELL R 2 - A%
EEMRERTENE—RERELR
SRR o BRERREFON - BIEEREE
ST EIT /2 UL E AT B AR R SR
EREHER - HReR LRATEES
A 15008 7T °

R e B A M2 E RS RARI S
SRt EIMELRINEMBIH - 5
SERE SRR XE FE
=

HZE2019F 12831 BILFE - AEER
A 2 FE ) = 2t 3R PR A8 Fl 5T & /B H 45X
#93,676,0007 7T (2018 £ : 3,794,00076
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

32. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 2. FREMBARMNFE
Change in ownership in non-wholly owned subsidiaries F2EMBAREERED
Increase/
% of equity (Decrease)/ (decrease)
interest increase in in attributable
acquired non-controlling to owners
Name of subsidiary by the Group interests  of the Company
AEE AR
BARRE FiEkRER BA AR
MELREMHE Ak (RS 8Em &/ (HD)
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FERT
Year ended 31 December 2018 BZ2018F12A31HLEE
Ideal Profit (Note ) HE (M) 25% (536) 536
Profit Holder (Note 1) 2 () 25% 1,147 (1,147)
Gain Long (Note 1) im (M) 25% 100 (100)
Pure Love (Note 2) Pure Love(ff3F2) 15% 752 (752)

Note |: The Group acquired 25% equity interests in these subsidiaries from Mr. Jason
Atherton, an independent third party to the Group, at a cash consideration of
HK$2,000,000 on 31 October 2018.

Note 2: The Group acquired |5% equity interest in this subsidiary from Mr. Nathan Green,
an independent third party to the Group, at a cash consideration of HK$150 on 14
September 2018.

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt balance and equity balance.
Debt balance mainly consists of bank borrowings and lease liabilities (details as
set out in note 25 and note |6). Equity balance consists of equity attributable to

owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on an on-going
annual basis. As part of this review, the management of the Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well

as the issue of new debt or repayment of debts.

The net debt-to-capital ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

33.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE
BEXRBREE (E)
AEBENEA LB ERER AR R
e BERAEHEIERERITERRA
E8EGHRBEEHAMELRME6) - #
BEBRBERAREA AEEER (B2
BEEBTRARGERE)

AEBERERESFRAENER
A ERSREBEREROKA R
HER - REAKEEEENER
REBREBMIRE - BITHRRE
THEREREBATEERRERE
e

RBEHRNERFEEER L TN
s ¢

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Total debt Er s 45,654 8,445
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B Re KR e EEY (8,142) (35,699)
Net Debt B FR 37,512 (27,254)
Total equity BmiEs 29,175 61,132
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FEHGCRABREAR LK 129% N/A 7~ F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34 S@ETIA
(@)  Categories of financial instruments @ SRIANER

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Financial assets at amortised cost BB AT ENEREE 42,166 53,565
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEEERATENERAE 85,033 26,810

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b) SHEREERNHRBX

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables
and deposits, amounts due from related companies, a controlling
shareholder, non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables
and accrued charges, amounts due to related companies, a controlling
shareholder and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies

on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

Management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont d)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

()

Market risk

Interest rate nisk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to floating-rate bank borrowings, and fair value interest rate
risk in relation to pledged bank deposits and non-interest bearing
amounts due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, amount due from an

associate.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, management of the Group closely monitors its exposure to
future cash flow risk as a result of change on market interest rate and
will consider hedging changes in market interest rates should the need

arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group's bank borrowings.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are

detailed in the liquidity risk section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances and floating-rate
bank borrowings as the management of the Group considers that
the interest rate fluctuation on bank balances and bank borrowings ‘is

minimal.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2019, the maximum exposure to credit risk of
the Group which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade and other receivables

The Group trades with a large number of individual customers and
trading terms are mainly on cash and credit card settlement. In view
of the Group's operation, the Group does not have significant credit
risk exposure to any single individual customer. Since | January
2018, the Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is assessed on an individual
debtor basis. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different customers, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customers as at | January 2018.
At 3| December 2018 and 2019, the Group assessed the lifetime
ECL of the trade receivables and |2m ECL of the other receivables
and considered that the expected credit loss allowance for these

receivables is immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont d)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd)

Amounts due from related parties

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due
from related companies, a controlling shareholder, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate. The management of
the Group considers the counterparties have continuous repayment
history. Since | January 2018, the Group measures loss allowances for
amounts due from related parties at an amount equal to 12m ECL,
which is assessed on an individual debtor basis. As at 3| December
2019, the management of the Group assessed that the expected
credit loss allowance for these receivables is immaterial under 12m
ECL method.

Bank balances and pledge bank deposits

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with bank balances and pledged bank deposits since they are
substantially deposited at medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed
banks. Management does not expect that there will be any significant
losses from non-performance by these counterparties. The Group has
concentration risk on its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and

bank balances are placed with three banks in Hong Kong.

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE
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b) LEREREBEORBE(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i) Liquidity risk

In view of the factors mentioned in Note 3(b), a series of measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure have been taken to improve its financial

and liquidity position of the Group as a whole.

The management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and obtained the
New Loan Facilities mentioned in note 25 to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash

flows.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based

on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount

is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont d)

(i)

FOR THE

mE M EHRRHE
YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMRER 2019
HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

34 £RMIA(E)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont @) b) SHEREEENREEE)
Liquidity risk (Cont d) (i) HEELEE (E)
During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Group reported a net REZE2019F 1283181
loss of HK$31,957,000 and had a net cash outflow of HK$27,557,000. FE  ARERBEBERF
As of that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current #831,957,0008 T R IR M
assets by HK$39,747,000 including the reclassification of non-current tH % %827,557,0004 7T © 1
portion of bank borrowings to current liability resulted from the ZB  AEEHRBERE
breach of loan covenant. In view of these factors, the Group seeks for Bt EL R E) & 239,747,000
the financial support on its controlling shareholder Ms. PY Wong and BT BHEEERERE
takes certain measure to mitigate the liquidity pressure by improving ’]ﬁﬁ RERTTRE B IER B
its financial and liquidity position as a whole. DEFTLERRDAE
La cERUFRER K&
ESRkEZRRR=ME
TP B FF - LRI
ETHE BERNEEE
BUBERRBERA RN
BERBECES -
In more
than one In more
yearbut  than three
Weighted notmore years but
average than  not more Total Total
effective ~ Repayable Less than three than five undiscounted carrying
interest rate  ondemand ~ One year years years  cash flows amount
BB-F BB=fF KRB
T BRE SR BTEE ETEE RERE fRE
BHAI= KEE - =% nF ko BE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THER THR TER THAT TR
As at 31 December 2019 R2019% 128318
Non-derivative financial liabilities JE£T4 £ FEE
Trade and other payables 85 REMER
and accrued charges *”IEEUE*Jr%ﬁ NATER 9,136 30017 — — 39,153 39,153
Amounts due to ENER AR
related companies NATER = 226 = = 226 26
Bank borrowings — floating rate ~ $R{TfEIA—IF& 4.62% — 2,790 1,291 — 408 3902
Lease liabilties HERE 5.00% = 2881 11819 3076 43706 41,752
9,136 61,844 13,110 3,076 87,166 85,033
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VB BRKE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F 12831 BILFE

34.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont d)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Contd)

4. SWMIAE)
b) LEREREBEORBE(E)

(i) TEHELERE(E)

In more
than one In more
Weighted yearbut  than three
average not more years but Total Total
effective  Repayable Lessthan  than three not more  undiscounted carrying
interest rate  on demand One year years than five years  cash flows amount
BR—F EB=F REH
IEF3 R SR EfrEE  BAEE  BERE b
(il KEE —f = h¥ b aE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT
As at 31 December 2018 018128318
Non-derivative financial liabilities FE74 £ B A &
Trade and other payables and B 5 R B A E(
accrued charges TERETER  NATER 1717 16,554 — — 18271 18271
Amounts due to related R A R]IE
companies NATER = 94 — — 94 94
Bank borrowings — floating rate  $F{TEF— /28, 352% — 4766 4004 — 8770 8445
1717 21414 4004 = 27135 | 26810

The amounts included above for variable interest rate non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to changes if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end

of the reporting period.

(c)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are

measured at amortised cost

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of the financial assets
and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost using discounted cash
flows analysis. The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost

in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019

BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

35. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 35. AARMBER
BRRR B R

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December

RI2A31R

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET

Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHBARMNIRE 41,204 41,204

Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and others FARN B R EH A 18l 322
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSF /& A RIFRIA 345 5,74
Bank balances and cash RITEARA 2 22 27,181
548 33244
Current liabilities RBEE

Other payables and accrued charges HihENFIEREER 1,433 816
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN 13,045 23,343
Amounts due to related companies JE I REE 12 R 5KIA 121 —
14,599 24,159
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (AEFE) EEFE (14,051) 9,085
Net assets EEFE 27,153 50,289

Capital and reserves EX Kk
Share capital (note 27) AR (P 5E27) 8,600 8,600
Reserves i 18,553 41,689
Equity attributable to owners of the Company FARBEARLES 27,153 50,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

35.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (Contd) 35. AAQEBBER(E)
Movement in the Company’s reserves KARREED

Share  Accumulated
premium losses Total
BRiaE - RIAEE st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER

At | January 2018 20181 A IH — (24,579) (24,579)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year — F AEIE R 2 H FH S B — (7,333) (7,333)
Arising from group reorganisation SEEHES 41,204 — 41,204
Capitalisation issue (note) BT (E) (6915) = (6915)
Issue of new shares upon share offer (note) IR 1D B E 1 BATHAR (M) 48,850 — 48,850
Transaction costs attributable to issue of new shares B THTARE(G IR Z R (9,538) — (9,538)
At 3| December 2018 2018512 A31 B 73,60 (31,912) 41,689
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FREER ZHEFEXEE = (23,136) (23,136)
At 3| December 2019 R2019% 128318 73,601 (55,048) 18,553
Note: Details are set out in the notes to the consolidated statement of change in equity and BEE : SRS A R BRI o S
note 27. 27 °

176  JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED #RE&EEHERAT



36.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing

activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE

36. MEEBAMELEBENYHE

TR AKERE RS AELAEN
Z2HHE  ARRSNIFREED - &
BRPMELRBEEMELREREY
FHEAEREBEARELEARER

activities. EXRTOERRELDMBRESRE
%
Non-trade
nature
amounts
due to Accrued
related Lease Bank Dividend  share issue
companies liabilities  borrowings payable costs Total
e B
RARE BE #AT B ERG
(FEZ1HE) aff &R R BORA At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TiER TiER TER ThR
At | January 2018 R20I8F 1 A1A 487 — 17612 — — 18099
Financing cash flows HERenE (397) — (9.657) (250) (9.538) (19842)
Dividend declared (note 13) EIRARS (W 13) — — — 250 — 250
Finance costs BERK = = 490 = = 490
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BITREMGNR KA
new shares = = = = 9538 9538
At 31 December 2018 R20I8F 124318 90 = 8,445 = = 8,535
Inital application of HKFRS 16 HREREBME
EEAE 163 - 57,071 = — — 57071
At | January 2019, as restated R09%FI1AI1R  KE5 90 57,071 8,445 = = 65,606
Financing cash flows HERERE — (27,039) (4,850) — = (31,889)
Non-cash item: FREER
Finance costs HEKK = 2437 307 = = 2,744
Additions of lease liabilties BNAERE — 10729 - — — 10,729
Reassessment BATE — (1,446) — — = (1,446)
At 31 December 2019 R2019E 124318 90 41,752 3,902 = = 45,744
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

37.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. IEMBATNERE
Details of the principal subsidiaries comprising the Group at the end of the RBEBR - AEBETZEMBERF
reporting period are set out below: BT
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
Place of fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation operation share capital as at 31 December Principal activities
EBTR ZE@RI2A3IE
HELREE TEA R 3t B ERiH BRRA PRSI A L 4l FEXH
2019 2018

Big Team Ventures BVI Hong Kong US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

Limited
Big Team Ventures RBEZHE B 50,0003 70 100% 100% REER

Limited
Brightsome Investments ~ BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Restaurant operation

Limited
KEREERAF EBRAES BE EH 100% 100% BE&E
Capital Creative Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
BERBRAF BB BA 100787T 100% 100% BELE
Duddell's Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Club membership

Limited services for one of the

Group's restaurants

Duddell's Hong Kong B B 1007%7T 100% 100% RASEEY—HEE
Limited RERERSERE

Gain Long Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited

ERERAR BR B | 000787 100% 100% ERLE

|deal Profit Corporation ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$50,000 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited

HERRAF 'R B 50,0007 7T 100% 100% EELE

Kingswide Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation

EHERAF BE BE 1007 7T 100% 100% EELE

Luck Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation

Luck Wealthy Limited B s 1007 7T 100% 100% ZELE

Oman International Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$3 100% 100%  Trademark holder
Investment Limited

ZEEREABRAR BB B 3BT 100% 100% FRFAA

Profit Holder Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Restaurant operation

AEARAT 'R B | 000787 100% 100% ERLE

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERA A



37.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2019
BEWI9FNA3NBLFE

37. EEMBLATNFEE(E)

Proportion
Issued and of share capital
Place of fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation operation share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
ERTR ZEMRI2A31H
HEAR R TR R L 3t B BRI BERAE PR IR A LL 41 FEXH
2019 2018
Rising Mark Development ~ BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BYERERAF RBRIHS B 0000%7T 100% 100% &ERR
Springlike Limited BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Springie Limited RBRLES B B3 100% 100%  BAMER
Top Glorification Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Top Glorification Limited ~ EBREXZEE B 100%7T 100% 100% BELE
Victory Rich Global BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited
WAEHREEBRAR RERZHS BE 10000% 7T 100% 100% BEER
Dazzle Long Limited BVI Hong Kong USS| 100% 100%  Investment holding
Dazzle Long Limited ERERHE & E 100% 100% &AM
Maxmount Global BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Provision of consultancy
Limited services in connection
with the restaurant
operations
BRRHRARAF REBRIES B B 100% 100% AERCERHE
fel AR 1%
Season Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong US$ | 100% 100%  Investment holding
Season Luck Limited RERUES B B 100% 100% AR
Pure Love Limited BVI Hong Kong US$| 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Pure Love Limited REBRIES B |%7T 100% 100% BEEE
Ultra Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ ! 100% 100%  To carry out restaurant
operation
EEFRAF 20 BR |7 100% 100% HEBRLE
Fine Wisdom Holdings BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Fine Wisdom Holdings ~ REBRXZES 0 E 100% 100% HREER
Limited
Vantage Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Vantage Luck Limited RERREHS & B 100% 100% IREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019

BHE19F12A31BILFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 37. EEMBARNFES (&
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
Place of fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation operation share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
ERTR ZEMRI2A31H
HEAR R TR R L 3t B BRI BERAE PR IR A LL 41 FEXH
2019 2018
King Access Corporation  Hong Kong Hong Kong HKSI 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited
wBAEBRAT BR B BT 100% 100% BELE
Fit Asia Inc Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% N/A Investment holding
REHARAF BB BE | 000787 100% TER  RAER
Hidden Glory Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% N/A  Investment holding
Hidden Glory Limited RERZHE B 100 TT 100% TNER  REER
Jolly Master Enterprises BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% N/A  Investment holding
Limited
Jolly Master Enterprises RERZHESE BB e 100% TNER  REER
Limited
Champ Winner Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ ! 100% N/A Investment holding
Champ Winner Limited ~ &/8 & I 100% NER  REEKR
Ever Creation Asia Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS$I 100% N/A Investment holding
Investment Limited
BIESARBBRAR BB BE |7 100% TER REZR
Loyal Talent International ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ ! 100% N/A  Restaurant operation
Limited
BRERBR AR e EE 1B 100% TER EEgE
Mighty Kingdom Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS$I 100% N/A Investment holding
AR B &t IB7T 100% NER  RERK
Sure Big Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKSI 100% N/A Investment holding
EAERAA BB EE I7B7T 100% NER  REEKR
Well Team Enterprise Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ ! 100% N/A  Investment holding
Limited
Well Team Enterprise B &S |7 100% TNER REBR
Limited
Ever Brave Ventures BVI Hong Kong USS| 100% N/A  Investment holding
Limited
Ever Brave Ventures ERERHE B E 100% NER  REER
Limited
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE
FTEMB DTS (E)

Proportion
Issued and of share capital
Place of fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation operation share capital as at 31 December Principal activities
ERTR ZE@RI12A31H
HELREE TEA R L 3t B ERiH BRRA PRSI A L 4l FEXH
2019 2018
Rich Gain Ventures BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% N/A  Investment holding
Limited
Rich Gain Ventures ERRRHS 0 o 100% TEA  REER
Limited
Star Glory Ventures BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% N/A  Investment holding
Limited
Star Glory Ventures RERZHE B [ 100% TNER  REER
Limited

The above table lists the entities now comprising the Group which, in the opinion
of the Directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Big Team is directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company. All subsidiaries now comprising the Group are limited liability

companies and have adopted 3| December as their financial year end date.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

EREIAKERGETERE - AL F]
ESRR ARERYUAKENEER
BERBKIBYE ADAEERR
REEMBMB AR B R ERERF
BFRERE -

Big Team AN AR EREREH  FTEEAM
BB RALREERNE - A&E
BEETHENBARSABRAR
WK 12 A3 BEEMEFELR

RER - HENB QR BITEABERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the share option
scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the shareholders
passed on 23 January 2018. The terms of the share option scheme are in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The share option scheme became
effective on 8 February 2018, and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will

remain in force for |0 years from that date.

No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption of the

share option scheme.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide additional
incentives to the Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
shareholders. The Board of Directors of the Company may offer to grant an option

to any Qualifying Grantees.
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company (Contd)

“Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates and any person who
is an officer of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates; (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates; (3)
any consultant, agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group
or any affiliates; (4) any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier
of goods or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee thereof
(collectively the “Eligible Person™); or (i) any trust for the benefit of an Eligible
Person or his immediate family members or any company controlled by an Eligible

Person or his immediate family members.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the share option
scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. No option may be granted under any schemes of the Company if this
will result in the limit being exercised. The maximum number of shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the share option scheme
and any other schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the
shares in issued following the completion of the capitalisation issue and the share

offer, i.e. 86,000,000 shares.

38.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE0I9F 12831 HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DEGEMBER 2019
BHE19F12A31BILFE

38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company (Contd)

No option may be granted to any participant of the share option scheme such that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any |2-month period up to the date
of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to

time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme at any time during a period as determined by the board of Directors of
the Company and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the share option scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0
upon acceptance of the grant 28 days from the date of the offer (or such period
as the board of Directors of the Company may specify in writing). The exercise
price of the options is determined by the board of Directors of the Company in
its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the
closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
on the offer date; (b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (c) the nominal value of a share. The share option scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 8 February 2018, after which no

further options will be granted or offered.
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Up to the date of this report, the Group has executed temporary closure of two
restaurants in Wanchai, namely “22 Ships” and “Ham & Sherry” effective from 12
March 2020 and the permanent closure of one restaurant in Admiralty, namely
Commissary in April 2020 without any compensation to the landlord. Details
refer of which are set out in the Company's announcement on || March 2020.
In addition, the Group has planned to suspend of one restaurant and one bar in
Central, namely “Old Bailey” and “Behind Bars", from May 2020.

In March 2020, the Group has entered into a three-year lease agreement with
a fixed monthly lease payment of HK$ 165,000 for opening a new restaurant in
Central, Hong Kong. The lease agreement would be effective from 20 April 2020.
Details of which are set out in the Company's announcement dated 23 March
2020.

39.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFUBMRE

The following tables summaries the consolidated financial statements of the Group in TREFIRATEFAEENGZE M BRE -

respective year as indicated:

For the year ended 31 December
BEINANALFE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL TR TET TET TR

Revenue A 206,476 232,375 236,371 230,256 219,065
Profit (loss) before taxation BRIADRA (B518) (2,760) (7531 (3217) (15673) (31,697)
Income tax expense FEHR (1832) (2012) (1357) (753) (260)
Profit (loss) for the year FREF (EB8) (4592) (9,543) (4574) (16426) (31,957)
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hiw2mE (FA)KA
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified HEMRENIHE
to profit or loss: BRmER
Exchange differences arising on translation BEBINETBE LR
of foreign operation B X ER (253) (129) — — —
Reclassification of translation reserve to HE BN EB R BRE
profit or loss upon disposal of REETHEEZES
foreign operation = 382 = = —
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMEE (Fs)RA
for the year (253) 253 = = =
Total comprehensive income (expense) FREERA ()@
for the year (4,845) (9,290) (4,574) (16,426) (31,957)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: KT EBREF RN
(B#) :
— Owners of the Company —AREHEAA (7,033) (8,245) (4,567) (15435) (31,957)
— Non-controlling interests — IR 2441 (1,298) ) (991) —

(4592) 9.543) @574 (16426) | (31,957)

Total comprehensive income (expense) NTRERIEFENEE
for the year attributable to: WA (R ) 4%
— Owners of the Company R YNGI ZUN (7,240) (7.992) (4567) (15,435) (31,957)
— Non-controlling interests — IR 2395 (1,298) ) (991) —

(4.845) (9.290) @574 (16426) | (31,957)
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Note:

Pursuant to the group reorganisation as more fully explained in the section headed “Corporate
Reorganisation” in Appendix V to the Prospectus (the “Group Reorganisation”), the Company
became the holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 23 January 2018. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulting from the Group Reorganisation have
been under the common control of Ms. Wong Pui Yain throughout the years ended 31 December
2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 or since their respective dates of incorporation, where there
is a shorter period and is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the principles of merger accounting in accordance with
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as if the Company had always been the holding
company of the Group.

The above financial information is extracted from the consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2015, 2016,
2017, 2018 and 2019, which are prepared as if the current group structure had been in existence
throughout the years ended 31 December 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 or since the date of

incorporation of respective group companies where there is a shorter period.

TFEHBHRE

B EE -

BESEEH(SEEAR] - N BRERNE
AlRFESEMA]—5)  ANARIR20I18F I A23BK
ARRERAEENE DR ZERAR - REES
HEMEENNEE (RERRAIRENBAR)RE
F20159F ~ 20164 ~ 20174 ~ 2018F 20194 |2
A3 BIEFER B ZF AR B M&K B ELAK
(ABREHERE)  —EXHMAL T LR
ARRRREREESE - At HREMBRERER
BESERMASRMN G55 B55% [ LRE
Hl& et @i IRt & e 2R AIG
2 BUARA—ERAASEMNERAT o

FBBER R E A EEBZE2015%5 « 2016
F 20175 ~ 2018F K2019F 12 A31 HILFEH
REBRREMEERGR  BIRRNEERRE
REZE2015% ~ 20165 + 20174 + 2018F %2019
F12A31 BIEFE S E S EE QR ML B HR
(ABREHRA%E)EFE °
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFUBMRE

As at 31 December

RI12A31 8
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
FAL FAEL TAL THL TET
Assets and liabilities BERARE
Total assets BERE 90,726 92,170 85715 94772 120,140
Total liabilities aEEE (37:442) (48,176) (46,904) (33,640) (90,965)
Net assets BEFE 53284 43994 38811 61,132 29,175
Equity attributable to; NTRIEEE#E :
— Owners of the Company YN/ Z-UN 53343 45425 39,033 61,132 29,175
— Non-controling interests — RIS (59) (1431 (222) — —
53284 43994 38811 61,132 29,175
Note: BicE

Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group on 23 January 2018. The Group comprising the Company
and its subsidiaries resulting from the Group Reorganisation have been under the common control
of Ms. Wong Pui Yain throughout the years ended 3| December 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019
or since their respective dates of incorporation, where there is a shorter period and is regarded as a
continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
principles of merger accounting in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as if the Company had always been the holding company of the Group.

The above financial information is extracted from the consolidated statements of financial position
of the Group as at 3| December 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 which present the assets and
liabilities of the companies now comprising the Group as at the respective dates as if the current

group structure had been in existence at those dates.
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